Franklin

WISCONSIN
414-425-7500
License Committee
Agenda*

Franklin City Hall Health Wing
9229 W. Loomis Rd
Franklin, WI
October 18, 2022 - 5:15 p.m.

1. Call to Order & Roll Call | Time:
2. Applicant Interviews & Decisions
License Applications Reviewed | Recommendations
Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Reserve Class B
Combination,
Entertainment &
Amusement
2022-2023
5:20 p.m.

DBA Staybridge Suites Milwaukee Airport South
Dadaswami Hospitality LLC

Vicki Jesson, Agent

9575 S 27 St

Extraordinary
Entertainment & Special
Event
5:25 p.m.

Race Day Events — EIf Run/Winter Run series
Person in Charge: Max Noll

Location: Whitnall Park to South of West College Ave
Date of Event: Sunday, November 20, 2022

Extraordinary
Entertainment & Special
Event
5:30 p.m.

Wheel & Sprocket — Fat Bike Event

Person in Charge: Amelia Kegel

Location: 7044 S Ballpark Dr and Kegel/Alpha Trail
Date of Event: Friday, November 19, 2022

Extraordinary
Entertainment & Special

Rock Sports Complex — APFC MMA Midwest Indoor
Invitational

E
5:3?'::“_ Person in Charge: Paul Cimoch
Location: 7095 S Ballpark Dr — MOSH Performance Center
Date of Event: Friday, November 18, 2022
Operator Nicla, Kaylee R
202:;:'023 Luxe Golf/Dog Haus/The Bricks
zgggrgzozr:i Pantoja, Isabella L
New Hideaway Pub & Eatery
Operator Patel, Amrish H
2023'2023 Discount Cigarettes & Liquor
ew
Operator Salas, Nicole W
2022-2023

New

Bowery Bar & Grill




License Committee Agenda
Health Wing
October 18, 2022

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve | Hold Deny
Operator Singh, Agyapal
2022-2023 Discount Cigarettes & Liquor
New
Operator | Walker, Adaira D
2022-2023 On the Border
New
Operator Johnson, Hadi L M
2022-2023 Swiss Street Pub & Grill
New
Operator Zoromskis, Eric L
2022-2023 Swiss Street Pub & Grill
New
3. Fireworks Display | Fireworks Display Process for License Committee
Process Consideration and Discussion for Recommendation to
the Common Council (Referred from 9/20/2022 &
10/4/2022 Common Council Meeting)
4. License Procedure | Review and Recommendation Regarding Current
Review Alcohol Beverage Licenses Enforcement Policy
Guidelines and License Committee Administrative Rules
and Procedures (Referred from 10/4/2022 Common
Council Meeting)
5. Alcohol License Statistics on Existing Alcohol Beverage Licenses in the
Statistics City of Franklin and Statistics on Quota of Available
Licenses in Relation Thereto.
6. Adjournment
Time

*Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have
decision-making responsibility. This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even

Page 2 of 2

though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting.



FRANKLIN FIRE DEPARTMENT
Permit Application

Permit Type Requested: Application Date:

Bon Fire  $50.00 per event Fireworks $50.00 per event
*Fees per City of Franklin Fire Code 133.17

Description of Event:

Date of Event:

Address of property that permit is being requested for:

Property Owner’s Name:

Address:

Phone Number:

Occupant’s Name if different from owner:

Address:

Phone Number:

The applicant agrees to comply with all applicable codes, statues and ordinances and with the conditions of
the permit if issued, and understands that the issuance of a permit creates no legal liability, expressed or
implied, on the Department or municipality; and certifies that the above information is accurate.

Applicant’s Signature: Date:

Fee Amount: Permit Issued by:

Fees Paid: Date:

All questions or requests for inspections shall be made to the
Franklin Fire Department
8901 W. Drexel Avenue, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132-9725 (414) 425-1420 / Fax (414) 425-7067



]
* Franklin gt
“ Department of City Development

WI1SCONSIN

August 2, 2021

Scot Johnson, Director of Events
ROC Ventures, LL1.C

7044 S. Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI 53132

Re:  Franklin Field (Milkmen) - siteworks.
Notice of Violation regarding hours of operation.

Dear Mr. Johnson:

Please be advised, it has come to the attention of the City of Franklin that on Friday, July 30, 2021,
the fireworks show lasted until 11:12 p.m. based on recordings of the west sound monitor. Fireworks
shows must end by 11:00 p.m. in accordance with the Extraordinary Event permit No. EE2021-002
(attached). Therefore, you are in violation of your Extraordinary Event permit and hereby notified
that future fireworks shows must end by 11:00 p.m. Failure to comply with this time restriction may
result in revoking your Extraordinary Event permit.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincercly/

Régulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP
Principal Planner

ec: Brian Sajdak, Assistant City Attorney
Ald. Daniel Mayer
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk



LICENSE

City of Franklin

EXTRAORDINARY EVENT

EE2021-002 $100.00

STATE OF WISCONSIN
CITY OF FRANKLIN

Whereas, BALLPARK COMMONS (MILKMEN)-FIREWORKS, 7044 S BALLPARK DR,
Scot JoHNsON has paid one hundred dollars to the Treasurer of the City of
Franklin, as required by the resolutions and ordinances of the City and has
complied with all the requirements necessary for obtaining this License.

Now therefore, by order of the Common Council and by virtue hereof, the said
BALLPARK COMMONS (MILKMEN)-FIREWORKS, SCOT JOHNSON is hereby licensed
and authorized to hold an extraordinary event in the City of Franklin on May
29t June 19%, June 26%, August 14™ August 28%, 2021 at
approximately 9pm; and July 16% and July 30%, 2021 at
approximately 9:30pm subject to all the conditions and provisions of said
resolutions and ordinances.

Special Instructions: In compliance with NFPA 1123 Fire Code, and
individual applications for each event submitted to the Fire Department and
provided Staff concerns are satisfied with the exception of games exceeding
nine innings in which 11:00 p.m. is the end time for fireworks and that the Oak
Leaf Trail is temporarily closed with barricades and signage indicating fireworks.

Given under my hand and the corporate seal of
the City of Franklin this 5% day of April, 2021

/s/ Stephen R Olson
* Mayor, City of Franklin

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk



g City of Franklin
; 9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WI 53132-9728 CITY CLERK OFFICE

TELEPHONE: 414-425-7500 FAX: 414-425-6428

EXTRAORDINARY ENTERTAINMENT & SPECIAL EVENT
APPLICATION

Application must be received a minimum of 30 working days prior to event.
Event Location (address and full description) Ballpark Commons - Franklin Field
7005 5. ;( 1 / ocirt e Franklin N, | 53137
Owner of property Michael Zimmerman

Purpose of Event Fireworks display immediately following select Milwaukee Milkmen games

Date(s) and Time(s) __Starting at approximately 9p on 5/29, 6/19, 6/26, 8/14, and 8/28. And starting at approximately

9:30p on 7/16 and 7/30. Each show will run roughly 10 minutes. *Start times are approximate based on avg length of game.

Setup date(s)/time(s) _10a on event dates

Breakdown date(s)/time(s) _Promptly after show conclusion

Maximum number attending per day _Stadium attendance only

Maximum number of tickets to be sold (if any) per day Stadium attendance only

Applicant __Ballpark Commons - Franklin Field - Scot Johnson

(If corporation, attach certified copy of Articles of Incorporation together with the name, age,
residence and mailing address of each person holding more than 10% of the stock.)

Soyy Suele 380
Address (including City/State/Zip) ‘796‘6‘78 Ballpark Dr. Franklin WI 53132
Home phone Cell
E-mail Business phone _(414) 908-6317
Fax Business E-Mail _scotj@rocventures.org

1. Provide plans to limit the maximum number of people permitted to assemble.

2. Provide plans for fencing the location of the special event and the gates contained in such fence. A detailed
drawing must be submitted as part of this application.

3. Provide plans for supplying potable water, including the source, amount available and location of outlets.

4. Provide plans for providing toilet and lavatory facilities, including the source, number, location, type and
means of disposing of waste.

5. Provide plans for holding, collecting & disposal of solid waste material

6. Provide plans, if any, to illuminate the location, including sources and amounts of power and location of
lamps.



—

Provide plans to limit the maximum number of people permitted to assemble.
a. This event is in conjunction with a ticketed baseball game at Franklin Field. No tickets will
be sold separately for this event.
Provide plans for fencing the location of the special event and the gates contained in such fence.
A detailed drawing must be submitted as part of this application.
a. See Attached Map to show fallout/launch location.
Provide plans for supplying potable water, including the source, amount available and location of
outlets.
a. Existing stadium infrastructure will be used.
Provide plans for providing toilet and lavatory facilities, including the source, number, location,
type and means of disposing of water.
a. Existing stadium infrastructure will be used.
Provide plans for holding, collecting & disposal of solid waste material
a. Existing stadium infrastructure will be used. Any additional waste material generated as a
result of the display (i.e. shells from firework mortar) will be collected and disposed of at
existing dumpster sites.
Provide plans, if any, to illuminate the location, including sources and amounts of power and
location of lamps.
a. No additional lighting will be needed.
Provide plans and description for parking vehicles, including size and location of lots, highway
ingress/egress, parking lots and shuttle services.
a. Since this event coincides with a baseball game, no additional parking will be utilized.
Provide plans for telephone services, including source, number and location.
a. Existing stadium infrastructure will be used. Management has access to mobile phones
available for customer use upon request.

. Provide plans for security, including number of guards, deployment, names, addresses,

credentials and hours of availability.
a. No additional security will be used for this event. The vendor contracted to produce the
event will provide personnel to monitor access to fallout/launch area.

10. Provide plans for fire protection, including number, type and locations of all protective devices,

including alarms & extinguishers, number of emergency fire personnel available.
a. Wolverine Fireworks Display, Inc. (Vendor) to provide this information as needed.

11.Provide plans for sound control and amplification, including numbers, locations and power of

amplifiers & speakers.
a. No sound amplificiation will be used for this event. We will monitor noise following the
protocol attached. No salute mortars will be used to help limit the decibels. Some may be
louder than 79 dBA. .

12.Provide plans for food and beverage concessions and concessionaires, including names, addresses

and license or permit numbers.
a. No additional concessions will be utilized as part of this event.

13.Provide plans and specific descriptions for each of any other type of vendor or provider of

amusements or entertainments, including names, addresses and license or permit numbers.
a. Fireworks to be provided by Wolverine Fireworks Display, Inc. (formerly Bartolotta

Firerworks). Permit/License information to be provided as needed




7. Provide plans and description for parking vehicles, including size and location of lots, highway
ingress/egress, parking lots and shuttle services.

8. Provide plans for telephone services, including source, number and location.
9. Provide plans for security, including number of guards, deployment, names, addresses, credentials and
hours of availability.

10. Provide plans for fire protection, including number, type and locations of all protective devices, including
alarms & extinguishers, number of emergency fire personnel available.

11. Provide plans for sound control and amplification, including numbers, locations and power of amplifiers &
speakers.

12. Provide plans for food and beverage concessions and concessionaires, including names, addresses and
license or permit numbers.

13. Provide plans and specific descriptions for each of any other type of vendor or provider of amusements or
entertainments, including names, addresses and license or permit numbers.

14. Provide Certificate of Insurance no later than 10 days prior to the event.
15. [[] $100.00 nonrefundable license & administration fee payable with application.
[ ] bond [] letter of credit [] cash deposit
(due no later than 10 days prior to the event, based upon anticipated cost of services)

Police services

Fire services

Registered Sanitarian (non-staff) services, if needed

Total estimated costs

Applicant agrees to indemnify and save harmless the City of Franklin from and against any and all liabilities,
claims, demands, judgments, losses and/or all suits at law or in equity, costs and expenses, including
reasonable attorney fees, for injury or death of any person or loss or damage to the property of any person,
firm, organization or corporation, arising in any way as a consequence of the grantmg of a license for this

special event. Applicant affirms that the statements contained in this app‘ ue and correct to the
best knowledge of Applicant.

Date 3{%//7?/

—

& '
Signatlire af Applicant

RECEIVED _ ReporTED TO COUNCIL LICENSE # SERVICE FEE TO BE INVOICED __

P:\SHARED\LICENSES\APPLICATIONS\APP EXTRAORDINARY ENTERTAINMENT & SPECIAL EVENT



City of Franklin Municipal Code

Chapter 133. Fire Prevention, Protection and Control

§ 133-1. General provisions.
C.

Permits required.

A

The Fire Department shall be responsible for issuing the following permits:

(a) 1
permits. .

§ 133-14. Miscellaneous use provisions.

A

Fireworks.

()

Sales. Except as provided in § 167.10(2) and (4), Wis. Stats., no person shall sell, or possess with the
intent to sell, fireworks.

@2

Possession. No person shall possess, manufacture, use, display, discharge or sell any fireworks
without a permit.

3)

Use. Except as provided in § 167.10(3), Wis. Stats., no person shall possess or use fireworks without
a user's permit issued pursuant to Subsection A{4)(d) below.

4)

User permit.

(a)

As provided in § 167.10(3), Wis. Stats., fireworks user's permits may be issued for festivals or
celebrations after proper application to the municipality.

(b)

The AHJ shall require a certificate of liability insurance or similar proof of coverage in an amount
deemed appropriate.

)

Fireworks displays shall be required to be conducted in accordance with the conditions and
requirements set forth in NFPA 1123, Code for Fireworks Displays.
(d)

Permits to display or discharge fireworks shall be issued as follows:

1L

An application for a permit may be obtained at the Fire Department.

21

Applications shall be submitted not less than seven days prior to the date of such display.

BL

No accumulating or purchase of fireworks shall be allowed prior to the issuance of the permit.

41




After review of the application and inspection of the site, a permit shall be issued or denied at the
discretion of the provisions of this chapter and the promotion of public safety and security of adjoining
property.

5L

The AHJ reserves the right to reinspect the display and landing sites at any time to ensure public
safety.

61

NFPA 1123 and 1124 will be used as a guide for these inspections.

71
The cost of such permits shall be set forth under § 133-17 of this code.

81

All persons applying for a permit must also submit proof of liability insurance in the amount of
$1,000,000 and a copy of any contract with companies which will be responsible in whole or part for
the fireworks, storage, or display.

91

All display companies and personnel who are paid to set off fireworks within the City shall return to the
area of fireworks display with 18 hours of the display and during daytime hours to carefully search for
and dispose of unexploded fireworks.

[10]

The Franklin Police Department and/or Fire Department personnel are authorized to enlarge the area
required to be searched by the display companies and their personnel.

(5).

No permits. Permits will not be issued to sell or manufacture fireworks.

(6)

Use of caps and sparklers. No unlicensed person may use fireworks, caps, or sparklers in a municipal
park or at a fireworks display for which a permit has been issued if the display is open to the public.
(7).

Pyrotechnics. Pyrotechnics are prohibited in public buildings and places of employment unless
authorized by the AHJ and shall be used in accordance with NFPA 1123.

(8)

The Fire Chief and/or his or her designee may disallow the display of fireworks due to local
circumstances, such as extremely dry conditions or other unforeseen circumstances.

©)

Sky lanterns. The use of free-floating sky lanterns and similar devices utilizing an open flame shall be
prohibited.

§ 133-17Fees.
A.

Fees shall be established for permits and shall be payable to the municipality. Fees are

subject to change.

B.

Permit fees. The fees established in Table 133-17A apply to permits required by this code.
Table 133-17A

Permit Fee

Bonfires $50 per fire




Table 133-17A

Permit Fee
Open burning $15 per year
Blasting $100 per project
Fireworks $50 per event

§ 133-18Violations and penalties.

A.

Any person who violates any of the provisions of this code, or who fails to comply with
any order made hereunder, or who builds in violation of any detailed statement of
specifications or plans submitted and conditionally approved hereunder, or any certificate
or permit herein from which no such appeal has been taken, or who fails to comply with
such an order as affirmed or modified by a court of competent jurisdiction within the time
fixed herein, shall for each and every violation and noncompliance be subject to the

following:

(1)
Imposition by forfeiture of no more than $500 per day by the Municipal Court.

§ 133-3Adoption of Wisconsin Administrative Code.
A.

The most current legislatively enacted version by the State of Wisconsin of the Wisconsin

Administrative Code, on the effective date of this Code, shall apply.
SPS 303 Administrative Procedures

SPS 305 Licenses, Certifications and Registrations
SPS 307 Explosives and Fireworks



Chapter 133. Fire Prevention, Protection and Control

§ 133-10. Revocation of permits.

A
The AHJ may revoke any permit issued in accordance with this code in any case where it may find that any

of the conditions of the issuance have not been maintained or where there has been false statement or
misrepresentation of any material fact in the application or plans on which the issuance was based.

B.

The AHJ shall promptly notify the permit holder of the request for revocation and, if so requested by the
permit holder, the effective date of the revocation shall be deferred pending a hearing before the Chief of
the Fire Department. The decision of the Fire Chief for revocation, following the hearing, shall be final.



Wisconsin Fireworks Law 2021
Wisconsin Department of Justice

This memorandum is intended as an advisory to law enforcement to address recurring
issues with respect to the possession, sale and use of fireworks in Wisconsin. It
summarizes Wisconsin fireworks law, answers common questions and corrects common
misunderstandings about the law. The applicable statute is Wisconsin Statute § 167.10.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/statutes/statutes/167#/statutes/statutes/167/ 5

The statutes do not give the Department of Justice direct authority to enforce the
fireworks law. Enforcement responsibility and authority rest with local law enforcement
and district attorneys, or municipal prosecutors in the case of local ordinance violations.
Therefore, law enforcement should consult their local district attorney and municipal
prosecutors with respect to specific enforcement questions in their jurisdiction.

£
Local ordinances may also regulate fireworks and may be stricter than state law, but
cannot be less strict. This advisory discusses only state law, so some devices or materials
described as legal in this advisory may be prohibited by a local ordinance.

Legal Without A Pgrmit

State law allows the sale, possession and use, without a permiit, of sparklers not exceeding
36 inches in length, stationary cones and fountains, toy snakes, smoke bombs, caps,
noisemakers, confetti poppers with less than % grain of explosive mixture, and novelty
devices that spin or move on the ground. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(1). There is no age restriction
on sale, possession or use of these devices and the statute does not classify them as
fireworks. Local ordinances may be more restrictive than state statutes and mayprohibit
any of these items or limit their sale or use. These are the only kinds of “fireworks,” as
that word is commonly used, that a person may use or possess withouta permit or that
may be sold to a person who does not have a permit.

lllegal Without A Permit

Possessing or using any other fireworks, including, for example, firecrackers, roman
candles, bottle rockets and mortars, in Wisconsin without a valid permit is illegal. Wis.
Stat. § 167.10(3). A commonly used rule of thumb is that a permit is required if the device
explodes or leaves the ground. The sale of these restricted fireworks to a resident of this
state without a valid permit is also illegal. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(2).

Wisconsin Fireworks Law, 2021 1



Conditions For A Valid Permit

The requirements for a valid permit are contained in Wis. Stat. § 167.10(3)(a), (c) and (f)
and are detailed below.

A permit may be issued by a mayor, village president or town chair or any person
designated by the mayor, village president or town chairperson. Wis. Stat. . _
§ 167.10(3)(a). If a city, village, or town requires that a user’s permit be signed or
stamped, a person who is authorized to issue the permit under par. (a) may sign or stamp
the permit before the permit is issued rather than signing or stamping the permit at the
time that it is issued. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(3)(fm).

A permit is valid only in the city, village or town of the official who issued it. A mayor,
village president, town chair, or a person they have designated can only authorize
possession or use of fireworks within their jurisdiction. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(3)(a). For
example, a permit issued by the town chair of one town cannot and does not authorize
possession or use of the fireworks in another town. Transportation Exception: A person
who has a valid permit from one municipality may purchase fireworks in another
municipality and transport them to the municipality in which the person has a permit.
Wis. Stat. § 167.10(3)(b)7.

A permit may require a bond or insurance. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(3)(e). An official issuing
a permit may require a bond or insurance policy to indemnify the issuing municipality for
any damages that may result from the possession or use of the fireworks.

A permit may be issued to an individual or group of individuals. Permits, other than for
crop protection, may be issued to a public authority, a fair association, an amusement
park, a park board, a civic organization, an individual, or a group of individuals. Wis. Stat.
§ 167.10(3)(c).

Although individuals may obtain permits, a group may also obtain a permit in the
group’s name. A group with a permit may authorize an individual to make purchases on
its behalf, but the permit must be in the name of the group. A person buying for a group
should have both a copy of the group’s permit and the authorization of the group. A group
may not issue a blanket authorization to all of its members to purchase on behalf of the
group. City of Wisconsin Dells v. Dells Fireworks, Inc., 197 Wis. 2d 1,21, 539 N.W.2d916 (Ct.
App. 1995). http://www.wicourts.gov/ca/opinions/94/pdf/94-1999.pdf. Wis. Stat $
167.10 creates “strict regulations” on the sale and use of fireworks. /d. Based on all the
circumstances the organization must actually exercise control over the purchase or use of
the fireworks by its members. /d.

The authorized buyer may only buy the kind of fireworks specified in the group’s permits.
The total quantity purchased by all authorized buyers on behalf of the group cannot
exceed the quantity of fireworks authorized by the permit. The fireworks purchased on

Wisconsin Fireworks Law, 2021 2

146




behalf of the group may only be possessed in the municipality which issued the group’s
permit, except while being transported from the point of sale to that municipality. The
fireworks may only be used by the group on the date and location specified on the permit
and subject to any other conditions on the permit.

A valid permit must specify the general kind and approximate quantity of fireworks
which may be purchased. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(3)(f)3.

A permit must specify the location at which the fireworks may be possessed or used.
Wis. Stat. § 167.10(3)(f)4. As noted above, this location must be within the jurisdiction of
the official who issued the permit. It must be a specific location within that jurisdiction,
rather than the entire jurisdiction. The statute uses “location” in the singular. A permit
that specifies multiple locations is not valid. :

The permit must specify the date of the permitted use. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(3)(f)4. The
word “date” is in the singular in the statute. A permit that specifies multiple dates or a
range of dates of permitted use is not valid. This, in combination with the specification
of location, means that a separate permit is required for each date and location for which
use is permitted.

The permit must specify the date on and after which the fireworks can be purchased.
Wis. Stat. § 167.10(3)(f)2. Once a permit is issued, the permitee may purchase fireworks
up to the date of the permitted use. :

A copy of a permit for large fireworks displays must be given to a fire or law
enforcement official in the municipality which issued the permit at least two days
before the date of use. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(3)(g). This requirement does not apply to
smaller consumer fireworks which require a permit, i.e. those classified as Division 1.4
explosives under CFR 173.50, or those items which fall outside the definition of fireworks
e.g. those identified in Wis. Stat. §167.10(1)(a)-(n). (Display fireworks are those classified
as Division 1.3 explosives under CFR 173.50.)

The permit may contain additional restrictions. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(3)(f)5. A municipality
may adopt ordinances imposing special restrictions, e.g., times or manner of use,
distances from buildings or spectators, etc. and a permit may specify these additional
restrictions.

Permits may not be issued to minors. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(3)(h). Since minors may not
be issued fireworks permits, there are no conditions under which it is legal for a minor to
possess or use any fireworks except those allowed without a permit, e.g., sparklers,
snakes, fountains, etc.

Fireworks vendors rather than only wholesalers or jobbers are now permitted to sell
fireworks to a person who is not a resident of this state. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(2)(bg).

Wisconsin Fireworks Law, 2021 3



However, a nonresident person may not possess or use fireworks in Wisconsin without a
valid Wisconsin permit. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(3)(a). See also State v. Victory Fireworks, Inc.,
230 Wis. 2d 721, 726-27, 602 N.W.2d 128 (Ct. App. 1999). A nonresident who lawfully
purchases fireworks under a permit can possess and use those fireworks in Wisconsin
pursuant to the terms of the permit or may transport them out of state. A nonresident
without a valid Wisconsin permit may order fireworks from a fireworks vendor for
shipping out-of-state. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(4), or may transport those fireworks from
Wisconsin to another state. (See below)

Persons may transport fireworks from the place they were purchased to the city, town
or village where their possession or use is authorized under a permit or ordinance. Wis.
Stat. § 167.10(3)(b)7. However, persons transporting fireworks may not possess them in
a city, town or village without a permit from that jurisdiction if they remain there for more
than 12 hours. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(3)(bm).

Penalties

A person who possesses or uses fireworks without a valid permit, or who sells fireworks
to a person who does not have a valid permit, is subject to a forfeiture of up to $1,000
per violation. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(9)(b). Each firework illegally possessed, used or sold may

be a separate violation.

A parent or guardian who allows a minor to possess or use fireworks (not including those

for which no permits are required) is subject to a forfeiture of up to $1,000 per violation. -

Wis. Stat. § 167.10(9)(c).

A city, village or town may obtain an injunction prohibiting a person from violating Wis.
Stat. § 167.10(8)(a). Violations of such an injunction are criminal misdemeanors, subject
to up to 9 months in jail and a $10,000 fine. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(9)(a). .

Enforcement

The statutes do not give the Department of Justice direct authority to enforce the
fireworks law. Enforcement responsibility and authority rest with local law enforcement
and district attorneys, or municipal prosecutors in the case of local ordinance violations.

Therefore, law enforcement should consult their local district attorney and municipal
prosecutors with respect to specific enforcement questions in their jurisdiction.

Susan V. Happ

Assistant Attorney General
P.O. Box 7857

Madison, Wi 53707

(608) 267-1339
happsv@doj.state.wi.us

Wisconsin Fireworks Law, 2021 4

148



/ \ \ﬁe C of W182 58200 Racine Avenue

T Muskego, WI 53150
1 262-679-4100

www.cityofmuskego.org
INDIVIDUAL FIREWORKS APPLICATION/PERMIT FORM

e An individual user fireworks discharge permit application may be made by any owner and resident of real
property in the City of Muskego for intended discharge on such applicant’s property.

e Such application may be made pursuant to §167.10(3)(c) of the Wisconsin State Statutes and shall be subject
to all requirements contained within §167.10 Wis. Stats.

: 00, Acceptable forms of payment include cash, check (payable to City of Muskego) and credit/debit
card which includes a service charge.

o All permit applications must be filed between May 1 and June 30, unless earlier submission is required to
allow for Public Works and Safety Committee review pursuant to Section 263-4(C)(4)(h) of the Muskego
Municipal Code.

e Such use is restricted to the following dates: July 3, 4, and 5 each year, subject to the followmg If the 4™ of
July falls on a Monday or Tuesday, the Saturday before_ falls on a
Wednesday or Thursday, the Saturday after will be allowed. 20

¢ The application must specify the name and address of the requested pemit holder, the date on and after
which fireworks may be purchased, the general kind and approximate quantity of fireworks which may be
purchased, the date and location of the proposed use, and the name, address and telephone number for the
individual responsible for the discharge of fireworks.

ol & covering the appllcant in the case of personal injury or property ciarﬁage
that occurs as a result of the discharge of fireworks.

¢ Mail form to Attn: Fireworks Permit, City of Muskego, W182S8200 Racine Avenue, Muskego, WI 53150 or
drop-off in drop box in front of City Hall.

e A copy of Section 263-4 of the Municipal Code is provided. Please read for all regulations.

Applicant (Owner & resident of real property in the City of Muskego) Phone Number

Address of Applicant Email Address

Location of display, only if different from address of applicant:

STATE: State law requires this permit to list the specific date and location of where the fireworks will be used.

O July 2, 2022
O July 3, 2022
O July 4, 2022
O July 5, 2022

Note: Fireworks can only be used between 4:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m.

110



THE FOLLOWING FIREWORKS WILL BE DISPLAYED: State law requires this permit to specify the general
kind and approximate quantity of fireworks. Please list kind and quantity below. (For example, firecrackers — 5}9,13
roman candles — 10) (

General Kind of Fireworks Approximate Quantity

| certify that | am familiar with all Federal, State, and Local laws and regulations pertaining to the display of
fireworks, and if granted said permit, do agree with and obey all provisions thereof.

Applicant’s signature Date: , 2022

OFFICE USE ONLY

un_---—--n-—--nn:lnlll--n-----nnu-1n-----n-n--nmnn—---n-n-n—-nnn‘

Application approved by:

Date: , 2022
Clerk-Treasurer Staff on behalf of Mayor Petfalski $35.00 Fee (2-216) #100.01.02.00.4265

Receipt # Amount: $35.00 Cash Check # Credit Card

Municipal Code Section 263-4 provided

T:\General Government\Masters\AP-Fireworks Individual 2022.docx

150



Fireworks User Application/Permit

W230 59185 Nevins Street Date of Application:
Big Bend, W1 53103 Payment & Type:
Phone: 262.662.2747

Fax: 262.662.3751

Applicant Name: Date of Birth:
Applicant Address: _
Applicant phone number: ( )

Date of Fireworks Display:
Location of Display:
Reason for Event:

State law requires this permit to specify the date the fireworks will be used. The State Attorney
General’s Office has determined that the permit must give a single specific date on which the fireworks
may be used.

THE FOLLOWING FIREWORKS WILL BE DISPLAYED: State law requires this permit to specify the kind and
quantity of fireworks. The Wisconsin Department of Justice has determined that the term “Class C”
does not satisfy the requirement. Please list kind and quantity. (For example, firecrackers-50, roman
candles-10, bottle rockets-20, etc.)

Location of Display:
Public or Private:

I certify that | am familiar with all Federal, State, and Local laws and regulations pertaining to the display
of fireworks, and if granted said permit, do agree with and obey all provisions thereof.

Applicant Date
Authorizing Agent Date
Fee:  $35.00

-This permit is for individual use of fireworks at the location listed and on the fireworks display date. A
separate application must be completed for each day requested.

-The Village of Big Bend requires an indemnity bond or policy of liability insurance taken in the Village
pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute 167.10(3)(e).

1r4



Village of Big Bend Municipal Code
Section 10.01 (3)(e)(11)(b)-(h)

B. Any fireworks use shall be subject to the following requirements:

1. Wind velocity shall not exceed 15 miles per hour as recorded by the National Weather
Service at Crites Field, Waukesha, Wisconsin.

2. Wind direction at time of use shall be away from buildings or other combustible
materials and structures and shall not carry fireworks onto any adjoining buildings or so
as to cause annoyance or danger to other persons or property.

3. Sufficient firefighting implements and personnel shall be available at the scene to
control any fire which may be caused by the fireworks in use.

0

No fireworks may be used between 10:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m., with the exception of New Year’s
Eve/New Year’s Day when additional hours of use may be established by permit.

D. Only the permit holder may discharge fireworks.

E.  Upon the issuance of a citation to any permit holder for the violation of any of the provisions of
this section, the person’s permit to use fireworks within the Village of Big Bend shall be
suspended. Upon conviction of any citation issued under this section, a person’s permit to use
fireworks shall be revoked.

F.  No person shall be in the possession of fireworks pursuant to this section may resell those

fireworks in the Village of Big Bend.

G. The permit the Village issues for the use of fireworks will be printed on bright colored paper
stock and must be displayed by people taking out such permit so that it is visible from the street.

H. The type of indemnity bond or liability insurance that may be required pursuant to Wisconsin
Statutes 167.10 (3) (e) is required in the Village of Big Bend.

Limitation of Liability. A party requesting a user permit and/or a seller’s permit has the ultimate
responsibility for their own safety and for the safety of all persons who may be affected by their activity.
The issuance of a user permit or a seller’s permit shall not be interpreted as endorsing or condoning the
activity or as ensuring that the activity will be safe. An applicant for a user permit and/or a seller’s
permit individually and on behalf of any entity for which the applicant submits the application, and also
on behalf of the property owner where the activity will be conducted, accepts all the risks and agrees to
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Village of Big Bend, its officers, employees and agents, from
any and all claims arising out of the use, sale or possession of the fireworks.

Indemnity. The Village may require an indemnity bond with good and sufficient sureties or policy of
liability insurance for the payment of all claims that may arise by reason of injuries to person or property
from the handling, use or discharge of fireworks under any user’s permit. The bond or policy, if required,
shall be taken in the name of the Village of Big Bend and any person injured thereby may bring an action
on the bond or policy in the person’s own name to recover the damage the person has sustained, but
the aggregate liability of the surety or insurer to all persons shall not exceed the amount of the bond or

policy. The bond or policy, if required, together with a copy of the permit shall be filed in the office of
the Village Clerk.

152



CITY OF NEW BERLIN FIRE DEPARTMENT e PERMIT APPLICATION

16300 W. National Ave. New Berlin, W1 53151 e Phone: 262-785-6120 ® Fax: 262-785-6130 o www.newberlin.org ¢ skon@newberlin.org

Date: / / Permit # M:
Reviewed/Received By: Check #:
Owner/or Occupancy:
Job Site Address:
Contractor:
Contractor Address: Phone #:
City:, State: Zip Code:
Type of Permit Fee Amount
Building Permits:

a) 1-4,999 sq. ft. $  60.00 Sq. Ft. S

b) 5,000 - 9,999 sq. ft. $  80.00 Sq. Ft. $

c) 10,000 - 24,999 sq. ft. $  95.00 Sq. Ft. $

d) 25,000 - 49,999 sq. ft. $  110.00 Sq. Ft. $

e) 50,000 - 74,999 sq. ft. $ 13500 Sq. Ft. S

f) 75,000 - 99,999 sq. ft. $  165.00 Sq. Ft. $

g) 100,000 - 149,9999 sq. ft. $  250.00 Sq. Ft. $

h) 150,000 - sq. ft. S

i) Multi-Family Buildings S

Rough Building Inspection:
Residential or Commercial

Occupancy Inspection:
Re-Occupancy/New Occup:
Tents
Membrane Structy,
Portable Seating
Other temporal

Sprinkler Head F
Plan Re (

Plan Revie
Device Fee

Rough Inspectior:
Acceptance Test

Fire Suppression Plan;‘
Non-water Based Firi

Commercial Cooking Hood Sy:

Other $

Acceptance Test 5
Non-ATCP 93 Regulated Storage Tanks: (NOTE: All ATCP 93 7

Plan Review for Cryogenic/LP/all other tanks 00763 # Tanks, S

Site Inspection of tank systems $50.00/ tank #Tanks, S
Fireworks:

Permits $ 7500 $

Site Inspections $ 5000 $
Variance from State or Municipal Code: $  75.00 S,
Re-Inspection: Double Fees S
Starting Work Without Permit or Plan Review: Double Fees S
Plan Approval Return Fee: (Note: If mailed back to contractor) $ 20.00 S,

TOTAL FEES §

Make checks payable to: City of New Berlin

Date Received: Approved By: Amount Approved:$

Charge to Account #:

WHITE COPY - APPLICANT @ YELLOW COPY - FIRE DEPARTMENT ® PINK COPY - TREASURER
Updated: March 20, 2014 e Lt. Pierce ® Fire Prevention and Inspection Bureau



Reflections of
Village of Rochester the Past...

300 W. Spring Street, P.O. Box 65, Rochester, WI 53167
(262) 534-2431 Phone, (262) 534-4084

email: vrochstr@wi.r.com website: http:/rochesterwi.us

Visions of
the %"m\

FIREWORKS
APPLICATION/PERMIT FORM

Individual applicant must be an owner or resident of real property in the Village of Rochester

Fee- $15.00, cash or check payable to the Village of Rochester

All permit applications must be filed between May 1 and June 30

This permit is for individual use of fireworks at the location listed below and on the fireworks display
date (July 3 through July 5 only)

A separate application must be completed for each day requested.

Mail form to: Village of Rochester, P.Q. Box 65, Rochester WI 53167 or apply in person

A copy of Section 9-8 of the Municipal Code is provided. Please read all regulations.

e o o o

Applicant: Telephone:
(Owner or resident of real property in the Village of Rochester)

Person(s) Discharging Fireworks

Address of Applicant:

Location of display only if different from address of applicant:

,2016 Note: Fireworks can only be used between 4:00 p.m. and 10:30 p.m.

STATE: State law requires this permit to specify the date the fireworks will be used. The State Attorney
General’s Office has determined that the permit must give a single specific date on which the fireworks may
be used.

THE FOLLOWING FIREWORKS WILL BE DISPLAYED: State law requires this permit to specify the kind and
quality of fireworks. The Wisconsin Department of Justice has determined that the term “Class C” does not
satisfy the requirement.

Please list kind and quantity below. (For exmﬁple, firecrackers - 50, roman candles - 10)

Specific Kind of Fireworks Approximate Quantity

(List on a separate sheet if more space is needed)
I certify that I am familiar with all Federal, State and Local laws and regulations pertaining to the display of
fireworks, and if granted said permit, do agree with and obey all provisions thereof.

1 as the applicant, agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Village of Rochester from and against all
liabilities, claims, demands, judgements, losses, and all suits at law or in equity, costs and expenses, including
reasonable attorney fees, for injury or death of any person or loss or damage to the property of any person,
including both parties hereto and their employees, arising from the ignition and use of fireworks.

Applicant’s Signature Date: ,2016

Application Approved by: Date: ,2016
(Clerk-Treasurer, on behalf of Village Presiden t)

$15.00 Fee Municipal Code Section 9-8 provided to applicant e

154



Municipal Code of the Village of Rochester, Racine County, Wisconsin

H. Penalty. Any person who violates any provision of this Section or who shall transport passengers
in a horse-drawn carriage within the Village of Rochester without first obtaining a license as
required herein shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to the penalties set forth in s. 9-50.
Each day of continued violation of the provisions of this Section shall be considered a separate
offense.

9-8. SALE AND DISCHARGE OF FIREWORKS RESTRICTED!

A. State Laws Adopted. The statutory provisions of Wis. Stat. s. 167.10, as may be amended from
time to time, regulating the sale and use of fireworks, except in so far as this ordinance is more restrictive
as to use, are hereby adopted by reference and made part of this Section as though fully set forth herein.
This Section is adopted pursuant to Wis. Stat. s. 167.10(5).

B. Definitions. As used in this section, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:
1. “Novelty Fireworks” means the following types of fireworks:

- A cap containing not more than 1/4 grain of explosive mixture, if the cap is used or
possessed or sold for use in a device which prevents direct bodily contact with a cap
when it is in place for explosion. :

- A toy snake which contains no mercury.

- A sparkler on a wire or wood stick not exceeding 36 inches in length that is designed to
produce audible or visible effects or to produce audible and visible effects.

- A device designed to spray out paper confetti or streamers and which contains less than
1/4 grain of explosive mixture.

- A fuseless device that is designed to produce audible or visible effects or audible and
visible effects, and that contains less than % grain of explosive mixture.

- A device that is designed primarily to burn pyrotechnic smoke-producing mixtures, at a
controlled rate, and that produces audible or visible effects, or audible and visible effects.
- A cylindrical fountain that consists of one or more tubes and that is classified by the
Federal Department of Transportation as a Division 1.4 explosive, as defined in 49 CFR
173.50.

- A cone fountain that is classified by the Federal Department of Transportation as a
Division 1.4 explosive, as defined in 49 CFR 173.50.

2. “Novelty Fireworks, Commercial” means the sale and storage of novelty fireworks for
commercial purposes, for which a temporary use permit is required under s. 35-21.G.10.

3. “Statutory Fireworks” means anything manufactured, processed or packaged for
exploding, emitting sparks or combustion which does not have another common use,
inclusive of pyrotechnics, but not including any of the following:

- Fuel or a lubricant.

- A firearm cartridge or shotgun shell.

- A flare used or possessed or sold for use as a signal in an emergency or in the
operation of a railway, aircraft, watercraft or motor vehicle.

- A match, cigarette lighter, stove, furnace, candle, lantern or space heater.

- A model rocket engine.

- Tobacco and a tobacco product.

- Anything defined herein as "novelty fireworks."

! Ordinance #2016-4 Adopted May 9, 2016

9-35

1Cr



C. Sale and Storage of Fireworks.

1.

Municipal Code of the Village of Rochester, Racine County, Wisconsin

The sale and storage of statutory fireworks is prohibited within the Village of Rochester
unless such sale or storage is part of a permanent uze of land duly authorized under
Chapter 35, Planning and Zoning.

The sale and storage of novelty fireworks for commercial purposes is prohibited within
the Village without a Temporary Use Permit under s. 35-21.G.10. unless such sale or

storage is part of a permanent use of land duly authorized under Chapter 35, Planning
and Zoning..

D. Use of Statutory Fireworks.

1.

Use prohibited without a permit. The use of statutory fireworks is prohibited in the Village
of Rochester unless the fireworks are used pursuant to a user permit issued by the
Village of Rochester, according to the provisions of Wis. Stat. s. 167.10(3) and all of the
requirements and limitations of this Section 9-8.

User permit. A user permit application for the discharge of statutory fireworks may be
made by any owner or resident of real property in the Village of Rochester, for intended
discharge on such applicant's property in the Village. Such application may be made
pursuant to Wis. Stat. s. 167.10(3)(c), and shall be subject to all applicable terms of this
Section 9-8. Such use is restricted to the following dates: July 3, 4 or 5 each year, subject
to the following. If the 4th of July falls on a Monday or Tuesday, the Saturday before will
be allowed. If the 4th of July falls on a Wednesday or Thursday, the Saturday after will be
allowed. The application must specify the name and address of the requested permit
holder, the date on and after which fireworks may be purchased, the general kind and
approximate quantity of fireworks which may be purchased, the date and location of the
proposed use, and the name, address and telephone number for the individual
responsible for the discharge of fireworks. All permit applications under this subsection
must be filed between May 1 and June 30.

Restrictions and limitations. In addition to all other requirements of this Section 9-8 and

applicable State laws, any use of statutory fireworks shall be subject to the following
requirements:

a. Wind velocity. Wind velocity at the time of use shall not be more than 15 miles
per hour as recorded or forecast by the National Weather Service Forecast
Office, Milwaukee/Sullivan, Wisconsin.

b. Wind direction. Wind direction at the time of use shall be away from buildings or
other combustible materials and structures and shall not carry fireworks onto any
adjoining buildings or cause annoyance or danger to other persons or property.

C. The storage, use or display of permitted statutory fireworks shall conform to the
standards set forth in NFPA 1, Chapter 65, Explosives, Fireworks and Model
Rocketry, as may be amended from time to time. Every display shall be handled
by a competent adult operator. After the permit is issued, possession, and use of

fireworks shall be lawful for that purpose only. No permit granted hereunder is
transferable.

d. Storage and handling of statutory fireworks.

(1) No person may store or handle statutory fireworks on any premises
unless the premises are equipped with fire extinguishers.

9-36

156



Municipal Code of the Village of Rochester, Racine County, Wisconsin

2) No person may smoke where statutory fireworks are stored or handled.

3) A person who stores or handles statutory fireworks shall immediately
notify the Fire Chief or Fire Inspector of the location, description and
quantity of the fireworks.

4) No person may store statutory fireworks closer than the separation
distances required in NFPA 1 Chapter 65 to a dwelling.

(5) No person may store statutory fireworks closer than the separation
distances required in NFPA 1 Chapter 65 to public assemblages or
places where gasoline or volatile liquid is sold in quantities exceeding
one gallon.

(6) No person may use statutory fireworks for which a permit was not issued
while attending a fireworks display for which a permit has been issued
under this section.

e. Parental liability. A parent, foster, or family-operated group home parent or legal
guardian of a minor who consents to the use of any fireworks by the minor who is
under the age of 18 years of age is liable for damages caused by the minor's use
of the fireworks, and in addition shall be subject to the penalty provided in this
Municipal Code.

f. Fire prevention. Sufficient firefighting implements and personnel shall be
available at the scene to control any fire that may be caused by the statutory
fireworks.
g. Hours. Statutory fireworks may only be used between 4:00 P.M. and 10:30 P.M
h. Responsibility on Permitted Property. For property that is subject to a statutory ,

fireworks permit, only the individuals designated on the permit application may
discharge fireworks. Such individual is respensible in case of a violation, jointly
and severally with the permit holder and property owner, and any or all of these
parties may be cited for the violation. Any damage or personal injury as a result
of the ignition of fireworks shall be the responsibility of the permit holder.

i. Responsibility on non-permitted property. For property that is not permitted for
the discharge of statutory fireworks, if fireworks are discharged the actual person
that caused the illegal discharge is responsible for the violation if such person is
identified to the Village's satisfaction. If the Village cannot determine to its
satisfaction the actual person that caused the illegal discharge, the owner or
occupant of the property where the discharge occurred will be presumed to have
caused the discharge, or to have aided or abetted the discharge, and shall be
held responsible for the illegal discharge and may be cited for the violation. Such
presumption may be rebutted only by credible evidence to show that the owner
or occupant of the property had no knowledge of the fireworks being on the
property at any time prior to the discharge, and that the owner or occupant of the
property fully cooperated with the Village in trying to identify the actual person
who caused the illegal discharge.

j- No sale. No person in the possession of statutory fireworks pursuant to this
section may resell those fireworks in the Village of Rochester.

k. Permit availability. The permit issued for the use of fireworks must be made
available upon request of a law enforcement officer

9-37

1C7




Municipal Code of the Village of Rochester, Racine County, Wisconsin

£

s,

4, Fee. A fee for statutory fireworks permits shall be established by the Village Board and
placed on the Fee Schedule, and must be submitted at the time of application and shall
be non-refundable.

5. Acceptance of risk. All fireworks discharge permits issued in the Village are issued
subject to the possibility that discharge may be prohibited, even if the permit is issued,
due to the restrictions and limitations of this Section. All applicants accept this risk and
shall be solely responsible for all consequences of the same, by their submittal of the
application.

6. Statutory fireworks may be possessed and used by the Village without a permit, but
Village fire and law enforcement officials must be notified of the proposed use of
fireworks at least two days in advance.

Possession of statutory fireworks.

1. Statutory fireworks may be possessed while transporting the fireworks to a city, town,
village or county where the possession of the fireworks is authorized by permit or

ordinance, but the person doing the transporting may not remain in the Village for more
than 12 hours.

2, Statutory fireworks may be sold or possessed by persons delivering the fireworks to a
person granted a permit under this Section.

Use of Novelty Fireworks. Individuals may possess and use novelty fireworks on private property
with the permission of the owner or person in charge thereof. Novelty fireworks may be used in
Village rights-of-way, but not in the paved portion of streets. Novelty fireworks may not be used in
Village parks or in or on other Village property.

Temporary ban on all fireworks. The Village President, upon recommendation of the Fire Chief
because of extreme dryness or drought, may in the President’s discretion declare a temporary
ban on fireworks, whether statutory or novelty. No fireworks of any kind may be discharged during
a declared ban. Any permit which would otherwise allow discharge on a date during such ban is
automatically revoked, subject to the following. Such permittee may apply for a new discharge
date after the ban is lifted without incurring a new fee. If any of the possible discharge dates of
Section 9-8.D.2. are during the ban, the Village Board shall have the authority, but not the
obligation, to establish additional discharge dates which would apply only to those permittees who
were not able to discharge fireworks on their permitted dates due to the ban.

Seizure and destruction of fireworks; Revocation of permit.

1. In addition to, and not to the prejudice or exclusion of such other penalties and remedies
as may apply, any fireworks stored, handled, sold, possessed or used by a person who
violates the terms of this Section may be seized and held as evidence of the violation. In
the event a person is convicted of violating this section all fireworks seized shall be
destroyed pursuant to the provisions of Wis. Stat. s. 167.1 0(8)(b), provided that, if
storage after seizure but prior to resolution of the charges is deemed too dangerous, the
seized fireworks may be destroyed pursuant to statute. Fireworks seized as evidence ofa
violation for which no conviction results shall be returned to the owner if they have not
been destroyed pursuant to statute.

2. Any permit issued to the person under this Section shall be revoked upon conviction for a
violation of this Section.

9-38

158



—

Municipal Code of the Village of Rochester, Racine County, Wisconsin

l. Application for and issuance of permit.

1. Application. The application for a permit hereunder for statutory fireworks be submitted to
the Village Clerk and shall include the date of the display, and shall specify the name and
address of the permit holder, the kind and quantity of fireworks that will be displayed, and
the date and location of the display. The owner or person in authority of the site of the
display shall consent in writing to the use of the site.

2. Review and issuance. The application shall be reviewed by the Village Clerk, who may
seek the advice of the Fire Chief. The Clerk, under the authority of the Village President,
shall issue the permit only if the requirements of this Section are met.

(a) No permits shall be issued to minors.

(b) No permit shall be issued unless the applicant acknowledges in writing that he or
she understands and accepts that he or she is fully liable for all bodily injury and
property damage that may result from the issuance of the permit, and the
applicant indemnifies the Village for the same.

(c) No permit shall be issued for the storage of statutory fireworks, except as that
storage may be necessary in preparation for a display permitted hereunder, and
then only for the period set forth in this Section.

(d) No permit shall be issued for the indoor display or use of statutory fireworks.

3. In accordance with state statute, the Village Clerk shall provide copies of the permits
issued to the municipal fire and law enforcement officials at least 2 days before the date
of authorized use.

J. Penalties. See Wis. Stat. s. 167.10(9)(b), which provides that a penalty for violation of an
ordinance adopted pursuant to Wis. Stat. s. 167.10(5) may not exceed $1,000. The penalties for
violation of this Section shall be set forth in the Village Deposit Schedule and shall not exceed
$1000 per violation.

9-50 PENALTIES.

In addition to any penalty specifically set forth in this chapter, any person who violates any provision of
this chapter or any regulation or rule, or order made hereunder shall be subject to a penalty as provided
in Chapter 50 of this Municipal Code. Nothing in this section shall preclude the Village from maintaining

any appropriate action to prevent or remove a violation of any provision of this Chapter by injunction or
other equitable relief.

9-39

irn



City of Medford —
Fireworks Display Permit

639 S Second Street ®* Medford, Wi 54451 ® Phone (715) 748-4321

This application, and $100 fee must be received by the City no less than 45 days prior to the
requested date of fireworks display.

Permit Applicant: Phone Number:
Applicant Address: Email:
Time of day at which display is to be held: (No later than 11:00 PM)

The exact address/ location planned for display:

Date fireworks purchased: Date of actual display:

Fireworks Contractor/Operator:

Address:

Event Pyrotechnics/Operator Name:

Event Pyrotechnics Assistant Name(s):

Address and location fireworks will be stored at:

Please Include:

o Certificate of Liability Insurance ($1,000,000 bodily injury to one person; $2,000,000 for

injury to more than one person; and $1,000,000 for damage to property) naming City of
Medford as additional insured.

e Map of display area and spectator area

I HERBY AGREE AND CERTIFY the above information is correct, and | am 18 years of age or older. |
understand this permit is valid only for the date(s) of display and the requirement to comply with all
Wisconsin Statutes and the City of Medford Municipal Code now in effect. A violation of any of the
above shall be cause for permit to be immediately revoked by the Medford Area Fire Department or the
Medford Police Department/Taylor County Sherriff Department.

Signature of Permit Applicant Date Signed

The permit applicant agrees to indemnify and hold the City of Medford harmless for any lawsuit or
liability which may result in the applicant’s use or possession of fireworks. The City is not liable for
damage caused by fireworks for the sole reason of issuing a fireworks permit.

** Medford Area Fire Department reserves the right to rescind this permit should weather conditions
prove unfavorable. **

160



é{”h’\

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

U Applicant qualifies for receiving permit, must not be a minor.
0 $100.00 License Fee paid.

U Certificate of Insurance. Attach copy.

1 Map of Area. Attach copy.

U Fire Chief has reviewed and approved the application.

U Police Chief has reviewed and approved the application.

This permit is valid for the following dates:

Approved by Fire Chief/Police Chief
or Designee

Signature : Date Signed

Title
A copy of this permit shall be given to Medford Area Fire Department and the Medford Police

Department at least 2 days before the date of authorized use.

Na



PYROTECHNIC DISPLAY PERMIT APPLICATION

I APPLICANT
__ Public Authority Name:
__ Fair Association Agents Name:
__ Park Board Address:
__ Civic Organization
__ Resident Individuals Group Date of Birth:
__ Nonresident Individuals Group Social Security No.
(1R DISPLAY
Persons Igniting Fireworks:
Name Address DOB
Inventory: Attach list (including range of individual items)
Delivery Date: _
Storage location address: (Note Wisconsin Law prohibits storage in a dwelling
or within 50 feet of a dwelling):
Fire Fighting Apparatus:
mI. SITE
Attach scale site plan showing perimeter lines of location, house and out buildings on site and within
range of rockets, area of ignition, location of mortars, location of display area storage, fire fighting
apparatus, viewer seating.
Type of fire fighting apparatus:
IV. INSURANCE - (Attach Certificate of Insurance or Indemnity Bond)

Company Name: Policy Number:
Agent Name: Phone Number:
Agent Address:

Coverage Limits: Liability - $ Medical - $

I understand that the application must be filed a minimum of (15) fifteen days prior to the display. I
hereby swear or affirm that the information is true and correct. That fireworks may not be purchased or
delivered prior to granting of the permit.

Subscribed & sworn to before me

this__ dayof ,2 :
Applicants Signature
(Clerk/Notary Public)
My commission expires

162



s
Iz

PYROTECHNIC DISPLAY PERMIT APPLICATION

Permit No.: Date:

Granted To:

Granted pursuant to Section 347-21, Fond du Lac Municipal Code of Ordinances for the storage and display of
fireworks. This permit may be revoked at any time for non compliance with any conditions to its approval listed

below:

1) Date after which fireworks may be purchased »2 .

2) Type and quantity of fireworks which may be purchased:

See attached list.

Delivery: Fireworks may not be delivered prior to ,2

Storage: Fireworks may not be stored in a dwelling or structure located within
fifty (50) feet of dwelling.

3) Storage location must be locked.

Fire extinguishers must be located adjacent to storage location door:

Class Number Size

4)  Smoking prohibited in and signs posted.

Display: 1.) Agent must personally ignite fireworks or be on site during display.

2.) The agent may designate one (1) or two (2) ignites over eighteen (18) years of age.

3.) The fire extinguishers from the storage site must be in the ignition display area at
time of display.
4.) Location, date, time:

Other: Clean up deposit: $100.00

10D



CITY OF KALAMAZOO, MICHIGAN
FIREWORKS DISPLAY APPLICATION

The undersigned organization or group of individuals (from two or more families) hereby apply to
the City Commission of Kalamazoo for a permit to publicly display fireworks. We guarantee that the
display will be conducted by a qualified person under our immediate supervision in adequate open
space. A certificate of comprehensive general or personal liability insurance for a least $1 ,000,000,
protecting the applicant against property or personal injury damages during the display and naming
the City of Kalamazoo, its agents, officials, and employees as additionally insured parties

accompanies the application. Preliminary approval of the application has been given by the Fire
Marshal.

Location of the display:*
(*Location of display may not be changed after approved by Fire Marshal)

Date of Display:

Name of Qualified Operator

Name, Address and Phone of applicants:

Signature of Applicant

| endorse this application Approved by the City Commission
Fire Marshal City Clerk
Date: Date:

*PERMIT ISSUED SUBJECT TO COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS AND SAFETY
GUIDELINES SPECIFIED BY THE FIRE CODE. Change in location or safety guidelines
automatically voids this permit.

Date of Notification
to FAA:

Fire Marshal

Date:

c:\word\barb\special\firewks.app

i

164



£
H

«

>
s

g
8

S

»

SPEWA %E
g FIREWORKS PERMIT
PERMIT ISSUED TO:
*Permits only issued to the following:
1. A public authority 5. A civic organization
2. A fair association 6. Any individual or group of individuals
3. An amusement park 7. An agricultural producer for protection of crops

4. A park board

PERMIT ISSUED FOR THE PURPOSE OF: (check all that apply)

Possess and use display fireworks within the City of Chippewa Falls
(Proof of current federal permit required)

Possess, sell, and/or use consumer fireworks within the City of Chippewa Falls
Other (specify)

PERMIT IS VALID FOR THE FOLLOWING:
Date:
Time of Day: am/pm to am/pm

Location:

LIST THE TYPES (CLASS/DIVISION) AND QUANTITY (APPROXIMATE WEIGHT OR NUMBER) IN
POSSESSION OR ATTACH A LIST OF SUCH TO PERMIT APPLICATION:

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Applicant Name, Business Name or Company Authorized to Conduct Fireworks Display/Stand:

Permit Holder Address:

Permit Holder Telephone:

Permit Holder Email:

This permit is used pursuant to s. 167.10 Wisconsin State Statutes, and on the condition that the City of Chippewa

Falls shall not be held liable for accident or injury occasioned during the transportation, handling, storage, or use of
the fireworks or pyrotechnic devices. A copy of this permit must be submitted to the Chippewa Falls Fire and

Emergency services Department at least two days prior to the date of authorized use. Applications for the

sale of fireworks will also be referred to the City of Chippewa Falls Zoning Inspector for consideration.

Permit Holder Signature Date

Mayor Signature ' Date

City of Chippewa Falls Fireworks Permit #

1Nr



Sandi Wesolowski

L —————————————_————

From: DANA KERR <KerrConsulting@msn.com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 20, 2022 4:28 PM
To: Steve Olson; John Nelson; Kristen Wilhelm; Shari Hanneman; Sandi Wesolowski; Ed

Holpfer; meichman@franklinwi.gov; Mike Barber; kevinhaleyla@gmail.com;
Adam.Burckhardt@live.com; Glen Morrow; leonpl@hotmail.com; HogieHouse@!live.com;
Regulo Martinez-Montilva; Rick Oliva; Adam Remington; Peggy Steeno

Subject: Fireworks Pollutants and Noise, further research required

Attachments: fireworks pollutatnt.docx

The discussion of fireworks requires further research and evaluation of other ordinances and permits for other
municipalities. In addition, there needs to be an incentive for this development to become a good neighbor
and to adhere to the enforcement of standards, ordinances and process is arbitrary for this

development. There is no consistency, no citations, no repercussions so the pattern of non-compliance
compounds each year.

My concern is that this development consistently is not a good neighbor and intentionally does not follow the
required process at the City. There are over 120 events each year with disruptive noise with some going
through no process review at all.

There is a vast disparity between what was presented regarding this project since inception and what actually
has been constructed and operated.

Noise was to be mitigated. It has not. A sound study was a condition of the approval in 2016 which the
developer was to pay for. That required sound study was to make recommendations for the acoustic designs
at this development. The City Planning Manager report 11-2020 indicated the issues of noise were one of
problems of design.

Clearly having speakers pointed out from the stadium is not a reasonable standard and the City is negligent for
allowing HUNDREDS of events to be broadcast into this neighborhood over the past 5 years. The City has no
drawings for the acoustic system, the Planning Commission did not review anything, the Planning department
has no information, creating negligence for not requiring this information when citizens were complaining
about the noise since 2013.

I would like to suggest the following process to incent the development to be a good neighbor:

1. all special event permits should be based on a single day approval to encourage compliance with
mitigation of the noise to obtain other permits. (Including fireworks)

2. All speakers at the stadium need to be oriented away from residential districts and turned into the
bowl of the stadium.

3. Other speaker systems for other facilities - particularly the umbrella bar should be examined for live
music events.

4. mortar salutes should be banned

5. fireworks should be limited by time (start at 9:30 unless extra innings and then not after 10 pm) no
weekday fireworks should be allowed i



6. Limit the number of fireworks events at this district. 8 fireworks occurred this year, that is excessive

for this location that buts residential districts and parks.
7. Decibel monitors need to be set to record at 50 dBA, to comply with City Planning Manager report,

they are presented set to record at 65 dBA

I would like to suggest, prior to the elected officials stating that there are few complaints, the actual police
reports and online complaints for the season should be reviewed regarding the noise from this facility.

This discussion of fireworks warrants further research into other fireworks ordinances and research into the
impact of noise on the surrounding areas. The County sound study measured the fireworks so this discussion
of fireworks could wait until that report comes out to get an overall picture of the noise from this facility for all
events

The City Planning Manager indicates that the sound decibel level at the property line should be 50 decibels,
not 79. (City planning manager report Dec 2020). But this is not what is being complied with. The sound

monitors are set to record at 65 decibels. They need to record at 50 decibels at the property line.

More input on fireworks below from my research. Also attached is a document above regarding pollutants
from fireworks and the cancellation of fireworks indefinitely at a Northwoods minor league stadium.

The fireworks mortar salutes need to be prohibited. Mortars salutes are just noise no aerial effects. The City
of Franklin permit for previous fireworks for this facility states no mortar salutes will be used to limit decibel

levels. There have been mortar salutes used at this facility.

This item should be tabled until further research can be completed including obtaining all the police reports
and online complaints for this season.

And to research other municipalities fireworks standards.
Below are some suggestions from research of fireworks permits / process for other communities:

Common firework permit requirements:

Application submitted no later than 45 days prior to the event. Permit Fees $100- $150 per occurrence. Per
Wis Statutes 167 each firework event requires a separate permit.

Fire chief investigation, no permit shall be granted unless the mayor written gets permission / approval from
the fire chief to accept the application.

Insurance policies for holding an event in the State of Wisconsin are at the rate of $1,000,000 for bodily injury
to any one person, $2,000,000 for injury to more than one person and any other people afterwards. Also
$1,000,000 for any damage to property that may be caused by the fireworks under the permit.

Application to include diagram / map of fireworks / pyrotechnic display will take place that shows firing area,
fallout area, display site, distances to audience, buildings, parks, roadways and public pathways / trails and any
other special conditions required by the Fire Chief, Police Chief, Building Inspection and Governing body. No
aerial fireworks display will be conducted unless a permit has first been secured. Significant fines can be
issued and/or restriction from future fireworks and pyrotechnic displays for same business.

2



Nuisances. Fireworks will not be discharged in such a manner that may create a nuisance between the hours
of 10:00 p.m. to 11:00 a.m. Fireworks use will also be subject to any additional ordinances such as noise,
nuisance and assembly.

Violations of this regulation, city ordinance or state statute may result in revocation of the permit or inability
to obtain permit in the future.

The Fire Chief may, at his or her discretion, cancel any pyrotechnic display for any reason. The City will not be
required to issue a pyrotechnic display permit for an alternate date if a display is canceled, and the City shall not
be liable for any costs incurred as a result of the cancellation.

Events can be cancelled for concerns of drought or other environmental factors.

Upon conclusion of any pyrotechnic display, the authorized individuals responsible for recovery of any unfired
fireworks shall make a complete and thorough search for any unfired fireworks that failed to fire or function
during the display. Said person(s) will immediately dispose of or remove in a safe manner any remaining
fireworks.

All premises shall be equipped with approved fire extinguishers and any other equipment required by the Fire
Chief, or his or her designee.

Fire staff will be on scene during all pyrotechnic displays permitted by the City. The operator / permittee will be
charged for this service as set forth in the schedule of fees, which is adopted annually by resolution of the City

Council.

All fireworks that fire a projectile over land will be so set up that the projectile will go into the air as nearly as

possible in a vertical position.

Upon conclusion of any pyrotechnic display, the authorized individuals responsible for recovery of any unfired
fireworks shall make a complete and thorough search for any unfired fireworks that failed to fire or function
during the display. Said person(s) will immediately dispose of or remove in a safe manner any remaining

fireworks.

Cancellation of displays.

The Fire Chief may, at his or her discretion, cancel any pyrotechnic display for any reason. The City will not be
required to issue a pyrotechnic display permit for an alternate date if a display is canceled, and the City shall not
be liable for any costs incurred as a result of the cancellation.

Revocation of pyrotechnic display permit.

The City Clerk, Fire Chief, Police Chief, or Chief Building Inspector, or his or her designee, may, at any time for
good cause shown, revoke, suspend, or deny issuance of any permit issued under this chapter. Good cause will
include, without limitation for lack of enumeration herein, the following:

A. Any violation of the provisions of this chapter or any municipal code or ordinance;

B. Any violation of building, zoning, fire code, and municipal code applicable to the licensed premises;

C. Any violation of Wisconsin state law or the City Municipal Code and Ordinance that is relevant to the

protection of the general welfare of the community and natural resources.
3




D. Any conviction of the permittee for the illegal use of fireworks.

Kokomo Indiana
The City of Kokomo, Indiana has determined to restrict the use of fireworks which create excessive noise and

disturbances within the City.
This ordinance is designed to encourage the responsible and courteous use of consumer fireworks in the City

of Kokomo.

AND WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Kokomo deems it necessary to enact legislation concerning
fireworks usage and displays as provided for by Indiana Code: 22-11-14-10.5

Nothing in this ordinance shall prohibit the local Fire Chief, State Fire Marshal, or any duly authorized law
enforcement official from further restricting, or prohibiting, the use of fireworks during the aforementioned
periods of time for any weather related or public safety reasons.

Users shall be responsible for all debris resulting from the discharge of consumer fireworks. It is a violation of
this Ordinance if fireworks land upon property owned or occupied by another person from which permission
was not obtained, or upon public streets or City property, and which fireworks and/or all related debris is not
removed by the user withing twenty-four (24) hours of such use or discharge. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
nothing in this ordinance shall be interpreted to grant permission to any person to discharge, place, or land
debris on property occupied or owned by another, and the twenty-four (24) hour removal period required by
this ordinance shall not relieve any such user of any applicable civil liability, including but not limited to a
cause of action for trespass or nuisance.



Health concerns related to fireworks beyond the impact of noise.

Pollutants enter air / waterways for miles and days after fireworks events. The Root River
Tributary abuts this location as well as being adjacent to parks / conservancies. Perchlorate is
commonly used in solid rocket propellants, munitions, fireworks, airbag initiators for vehicles
and signal flares.

A more environmentally friendly option would be a drone display with restrictions on the noise.

https://www.facebook.com/au.hazmat/photos/a.469349130205703/1114121795728430/?typ
e=3

March 23, 2021

U.S.A, MICHIGAN, OSCEOLA CO, EVART:

Bombers Fireworks Canceled Due to Perchlorates Concerns

¢ Fireworks for Battle Creek Bombers (Northwoods League) games at C.O. Brown Stadium
have been canceled indefinitely after perchlorates, used as a propellent in fireworks, were
found in the groundwater in Evart.

¢ Evart, Ml is located 120 miles away from Battle Creek, it’s not a situation of the Bombers
created this pollution, as reported in a Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes &
Energy; it’s that the fireworks could cause groundwater pollution. The ballpark is located in the
city’s wellfield, serving as Battle Creek’s only municipal water source.

* The presence of perchlorates in the Battle Creek area and its cause is being disputed by the
Bombers, who point to other studies of wells in the area as being clear of perchlorates,
specifically, four Verona wells were tested in May 2020

Forbes report on fireworks producing pollution;

https://www.forbes.com/sites/grriscientist/2019/12/31/festive-fireworks-create-harmful-pall-
of-pollution/?sh=7fb9bfab2853

Festive Fireworks Create Harmful Pall Of Pollution

Fireworks create highly toxic gases and pollutants that poison the air, the water and the soil,
making them toxic to birds, wildlife, pets, livestock — and people — but there are
environmentally-friendly alternatives available

Pollutants released by fireworks travel far from their origin. Several studies revealed that in
mild weather, tagged heavy metals used in pyrotechnics traveled 100 km (62 miles) downwind
over a two-day period (i.e.; ref & ref). Among the pollutants traced were: strontium, vanadium
(V), potassium, titanium (Ti), barium, copper, lead, magnesium, aluminum (Al) and zinc (Zn).
These heavy metals add to the toxic pollution in the air. Further, the environmental impacts of
these emissions are not confined to the air because these heavy metals are washed out of the
air by rainfall, and accumulate in — and pollute — local watersheds.



Most urban areas have fireworks displays on two or three nights per year.

Despite the ephemeral nature of fireworks, the toxic chemicals they add to the environment
are permanent, and every year, we add more to this toxic mix. And of course, don’t forget that
there are many other sources of environmental pollution, and the accumulation of all these
toxic chemicals is deeply concerning.

Health impacts of pyrotechnic pollution

Currently, there is not much published research that focuses specifically on the health impacts
of fireworks, but they do use a variety of Persistent, Bioaccumulative, and Toxic

chemicals (PBTs) to create their effects. We do know PBTs remain in the environment for very
long periods of time, that they are highly resistant to degradation, and they easily enter and
quickly accumulate in the food chain.

That said, a 2010 study used epidemiological data to estimate the likely health impacts from
fireworks pollution and found that the relative risk of cardiovascular mortality increased to as
high as 125.11% and the relative risk for cardiovascular morbidity increased by 175.16% over a
regular winter day (ref).

Further, hospital admissions for asthma and other breathing problems peak the day following a
fireworks display.

Pyrotechnic pollution in the environment

Thanks to climate change-triggered droughts, clean and safe drinking water is becoming ever
more precious — and rare. Despite this, many urban fireworks shows are held over, or adjacent
to, a body of water to reduce the likelihood of fire. This, of course, increases a plethora of
fireworks pollutants in water. For example, one study found perchlorate concentrations in
surface water of a municipal lake located next to a fireworks show spiked 14 hours afterwards,
reaching levels from 24 to 1028 times the mean baseline value, and decreased back to
background levels within 20 to 80 days (ref). (Perchlorate is an inorganic chemical used in
fireworks and other explosives.) Another study found perchlorate in groundwater and surface
water, especially in the vicinity of fireworks manufacturing sites and fireworks display sites
(ref).

Although there is a fairly large body of work on perchlorate pollution, the health and ecological
impacts of perchlorate have not been fully assessed. Nevertheless, the evidence shows that
perchlorate contaminants are emerging as potent thyroid disruptors, with far-reaching
ecological impacts too



Page 1 it

License Committee

Administrative Rules and Procedures

Article I. Name of Committee

The name of this Committee shall be the “License Committee™ of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as the “Committee”.

Article II. Authorization

The authorization for the establishment of the Committee is set forth in §10-22. of the
Municipal Code of Franklin, Wisconsin, as amended, hereinafter referred to as “§10-
22.”, which is incorporated herein by this reference and is presented in Exhibit A.

Article III. Membership

Section 1. The composition of the Committee shall be as established in §10-22. and as may
otherwise be specified by the Common Council.

Section 2. The terms of the members shall be as established in §10-22. and as may otherwise be
specified by the Common Council.

Section 3. Each member shall have one (1) vote. The Chairman votes according to Common
Council policy, which follows Roberts Rules of Order. Voting by proxy is not
permitted. On a tie vote, the motion is lost. In the event the Committee is comprised of
co-chair status for each member, each member shall have a vote on all matters, absent
any conflict of interest or any other reason for abstention.

Section 4. All members shall serve without compensation.
Section 5. A quorum shall be two (2) members.
Section 6. Actions, communications, etc. of Committee members shall be subject to the provisions

of the Wisconsin Statutes, including but not limited to the Open Meetings Act, and the
Municipal Code and policies of the City of Franklin, including but not limited to the
Code of Ethics.

Article IV. Duties

Section 1. The duties of the Committee shall be as established in §10-22. of the Municipal Code of
the City of Franklin, and as may otherwise be specified by the Common Council.

Section 2. The City of Franklin’s City Clerk or designee shall provide administrative staff support
to the Committee.




City of Franklin License Committee Administrative Rules and Procedures Page 2

Article V. Officers

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

The officers of the Committee shall be the Chair, Vice-Chair and Secretary. In the
event the Committee is comprised of Co-Chair status for each member, one member
shall additionally be elected Secretary and no Vic-Chair shall be elected during such
status.

The Chair and Vice-Chair shall be elected by and from the Committee members.

The term of Chair and Vice-Chair shall be from election to the next election. Elections
to fill these offices shall be held at the first Committee meeting and the first Committee
meeting on or after May 1 of each subsequent year. Elections to fill vacancies will be
held at the first Committee meeting after the vacancy occurs.

The Chair shall preside at all meetings and hearings of the Committee and shall have
the duties normally conferred by parliamentary usage to such office. The Chair, with
the assistance of the City Clerk, shall:

a) Call meetings of the Committee as needed to fulfill the duties of the Committee
and determine the time and place of such meetings.

b) Prepare agendas for meetings.

c) Prepare reports of Committee actions.

d) Provide notice to all Committee members.

e) Attend to correspondence of the Committee as approved by the Committee.

) Determine that the Secretary keeps the official records of the Committee.

2) Determine that all Committee members have these Administrative Rules and

Procedures and such other records as may be necessary for the satisfactory
conduct of the duties of Committee members.
h) Have other duties as may from time to time be assigned by the Committee.

When the Chair is unable to preside or fulfill the duties of the Chair, the Vice-Chair (or
Co-Chair) shall preside and assume the duties of the Chair until the Chair is able to
preside.

Article VI. Committees, Subcommittees

Section 1.

Section 2.

The Committee may establish committees and subcommittees as deemed appropriate or
necessary to fulfill the duties of the Committee.

The Chair shall appoint committee and subcommittee members and officers.




City of Franklin License Committee Administrative Rules and Procedures Page 3

Article VII. Meetings

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

Section 6.

Section 7.

Section 8.

Section 9.

The Committee, its committees and subcommittees shall meet as needed to fulfill the
duties of the Committee.

The Committee shall meet at the call of the Chairman as needed to fulfill the duties of
the Committee.

All meetings of the Committee shall be open to the general public, subject to the
provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes (Open Meetings Act).

Except as otherwise provided herein or specified by the Common Council, the
parliamentary procedure of the Committee shall be as provided in Robert’s Rules of
Order Newly Revised, as approved by the Common Council.

A record of all Committee actions shall be kept as part of its minutes.

Any member of the Committee may place on a Committee agenda for consideration,
discussion, action, etc. any matter that is properly within or related to the duties, rules,
procedures, activities, etc. of the Committee, by notice to the Chair and the Secretary.

All materials and information related to matters to be considered by the Committee
shall be delivered to the City Clerk not later than seven (7) working days preceding the
meeting at which the matter is to be considered. Matters submitted for consideration by
the Committee may be rescheduled to a subsequent Committee meeting when the
Committee has determined that any required materials and information have not been
received by the specified time.

Agendas and other materials for each meeting shall, whenever possible, be mailed to the
members of the Committee not later than three (3) working days preceding the meeting.

Revisions or amendments to these Administrative Rules and Procedures (except items
established in the statutes and regulations of the State of Wisconsin or the Municipal
Code of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, which shall be as adopted by the applicable
authoritative body), shall require approval of a majority of all the members of the
Committee and approval by the Common Council. All other actions shall require
approval of a majority of all the members of the Committee.



City of Franklin License Committee Administrative Rules and Procedures Page 4

Article VIII. Order of Business

Section 1.

Section 2.

Each Committee agenda shall provide for the following order of business:

L. Call to order and roll call

II. Approval of minutes of previous meeting(s)
1. Old business (listed)

IV.  New business (listed)

V. Other business (e.g., items for future agendas, Committee rules and procedures,
etc.)
VL. Schedule next meeting

VII. Adjournment

In general, the order of business shall follow the printed agenda. The order of business
may vary from the printed agenda by consensus of the Committee members present.

Article IX. Non-member Participation

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Letters, documents and other records relevant to matters before the Committee or within
Committee duties are welcome at any time by submission to the Secretary, subject to
timing requirements established elsewhere herein. Submissions related to a specific
matter before the Committee will be considered when the specific matter is considered.
Submissions related to other matters within the Committee duties will be considered in
the Other Business section of the agenda or as otherwise deemed applicable by the
Committee.

Except for properly noticed and scheduled public hearings, non-member testimony
during Committee meetings shall be limited to a) applicants with matters before the
Committee, b) persons with knowledge or expertise relevant to matters before the
Committee or within Committee duties and c¢) the Mayor and Aldermen of the City of
Franklin. Such non-member testimony shall be permitted at the discretion of and upon
recognition by the Chair or on consensus of the Committee members present, and upon
statement of name, address and basis for testimony.

At a properly noticed and scheduled public hearing of the Committee, any person may
speak on the specified subject of the hearing upon recognition by the Chair and
statement of name and primary residence address.

Article X. Reconsideration

Section 1.

The Committee may reconsider any action taken by it during the same meeting at which
the action was taken and at the next succeeding meeting.



License Committee

Administrative Rules and Procedures

Table of Contents

Page Article Title
1 I Name of Committee
1 II Authorization
1 III Membership
1 IV Duties
2 \Y% Officers
2 VI Committees, Subcommittees
3 VII Meetings
4 VIII Order of Business
4 IX Non-members Participation
4 X Reconsideration

Exhibit

A.  §10-22. Of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin.

EXHIBIT A.

§10-22. License Committee. [Added 3-6-2001 by Ordinance No. 2001-1639]

The License Committee shall consist of three Alderpersons appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the Common Council, each to serve a one-year term commencing May 1.
(See §19-4. of this Code.)



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 2010- 6636

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSES
ENFORCEMENT POLICY GUIDELINES

WHEREAS, the Common Council having directed the License Committee,
upon the Committee’s recommendation, to prepare policy guidelines for use by the
Committee and the Common Council in reviewing alcohol license matters which may
mvolve the consideration of a denial, non-renewal or revocation of a license, to assist
the Committee and the Common Council in those deliberations; and

WHEREAS, the License Committee having reviewed other municipal and
state alcohol beverage license enforcement policy guidelines and having prepared a
policy thereafter and having recommended its adoption at its special meeting on
March 15, 2010 and the Common Council having considered such recommendation
and having determined that the proposed policy guidelines will serve to protect the
health, safety and welfare of the Community.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common

Council of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the City of Franklin Alcohol Beverage
Licenses Enforcement Policy Guidelines, in the content as annexed hereto, be and the
same are hereby approved.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin

this_16th dayof March , 2010.
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this _16th dayof March , 2010.
APPROVED:

it

Themas M. Taglor, Mayfr )

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES 5 NOES 1 ABSENT o0
(A1d. Sohns)




TS

o,

CITY OF FRANKLIN
ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSES
ENFORCEMENT POLICY GUIDELINES

Intent. As it is the responsibility of the License Committee (“Committee”) of the Franklin
Common Council to screen applications for alcohol beverage licenses within the City of Franklin
and to make recommendations thereupon to the Common Council for its decision under the licensing
authority granted by Chapter 125 of the Wisconsin - Statutes and Chapters 158 and 169 of the
Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, the Committee recommends and the Common Council
adopts the following guidelines in order to specify the reasons for denying, non-renewing or
revoking an alcohol beverage license. If a decision is made to deny, revoke, suspend or non-
renew a license, the Council is required to provide that person with a written reason for the
denial. These guidelines are adopted to assist the Committee in its reviews and recommendations
and the Common Council in its decision-making, to meet that requirement.

The following guidelines are established by the Common Council to provide a framework for
which persons are eligible for issuance of an alcohol beverage license (i.e. grounds for denial) and
a framework for suspension, revocation or non-renewal. There is broad discretion retained on
behalf of the Committee and the Common Council to consider each case on an individual
basis. Deviation from the guidelines may be allowed if ununsual, exaggerated or mitigating
circumstances exist, which may include, but are not limited to, the particular circamstances
documented or the length of time that has expired since the offense. [

e

Since alcohol beverage license. holders must act in cooperation with law enforcement to enforce
the alcohol beverage laws, drunk driving laws, and assist with minimizing disturbances of the
peace and maintaining the safety of the community, individuals with a past history of negative or
uncooperative contacts with police agencies should be scrutinized; provided, however, that the
Committee and the Common Council shall not discriminate against such applicants based on a
prior arrest or conviction record, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 111.321, 111.322, 111.335 and
125.12(1)(b), unless said arrest or conviction record substantially relates to the circumstances of

the particular licensed activity. It is with these goals in mind, as well, that these guidelines are
adopted.

For purposes of these guidelines, an “alcohol beverage license,” “license™ or “permit”
constitutes a retail license or an operators license. Additionally, the definition of “person” shall
be as defined in Wis. Stat. § 125.02(14) of the Wisconsin Statutes and §158-1. of the
Municipal Code of the City of Franklin. Therefore, these guidelines also apply to corporations,
limited liability companies, agents, and partnerships. A corporation or limited liability company
with an arrest or conviction record may be issued a license if the corporation or limited hability
company has terminated its relationship with all the individuals whose actions directly
contributed to the conviction [§ 125.04(5)(C) and §158-1.]. Furthermore, to the extent Wis.
Stat. Ch. 125 or Franklin Ordinances provide additional grounds for denial, suspension,
revocation or non-renewal, the Committee may also rely on such provisions.

Page 1 of 4




The Common Council will only deny renewal of, suspend or revoke a current alcohol
beverage license under these guidelines, or other justification provided by law, if the person
committed an offense substantially related to the licensed activity within the license year
period immediately preceding the year for which the person is seeking renewal or within the
license year period in which suspension or revocation i§ sought, unless the Police Chief .
demonstrates that previous offenses were not considered in the approval of the current
license. In the event the person is considered for non-renewal, suspension or revocation as the
result of such an offense, the Committee and Common Council shall consider all offénses,
regardless of when they occurred, to determine application of these guidelines.

Additionally, with respect to a non-natural person, such person’s license may be revoked,
suspended or non-renewed in the event a new officer, director, member, or manager, is named and
such person does not qualify under these guidelines; with the exception that a corporation or limited
liability company may retain its license if it terminates its relationship with all the individuals
whose actions directly contributed to the conviction. With respect to successor agents, se¢ Wis.
Stat. § 125.04(6).

Notwithstanding the above, the following violations may not be used as grounds for suspension,
revocation or non-renewal of an existing license:

1. furnishing alcohol beverages to underage persons (unless the licensee has
committed )
two (2) violations within a one €3] yeaI penod) or

2. Violations punishable under Wis. Stat. § 945.03(2m), 945.04(2m) or 945.05(1m)

(relating to commercial gambling and gambling devices).
A copy of these guidelines shall be provided to each person who applies for a license.

GUIDELINES

Guideline 1. Provided the offense is substantially related to the circumstances of the licensed
activity, any person who has been convicted of any felony, unless duly pardoned, does not qualify
for an alcohol beverage license. (To the extent the other guidelines reference a specific offense, this
guideline shall apply if the offense constitutes a felony.)

Guideline 2. Provided the offense is substantially related to the circumstances of the licensed
activity, any person who has been convicted of, released from incarceration in a State or Federal
Prison System, or a county jail for, or released from parole or probation status, or has a current
charge pendmg, for two (2) or more offenses, arising out of separate incidents, within the last ten
(10) years in the following subcategories, does not qualify for an alcohol beverage license: ’
(a)  Violent crimes against the person of another, including but not limited to homicide,
aggravated battery, sexual assault, injury by negligent use of 2 weapon, injury by negligent
use of a vehicle, or injury by intoxicated use of a vehicle.
(b)  Crimes involving cooperation (or lack thereof) with law enforcement officials, including but

Damra D nFA




not limited to, obstructing a police officer, resisting arrest, bribery of public officers or
employees, misconduct in public office, bomb scares, or acts or threats of terrorism. . .
(c)  Manufacturing, distributing, delivering a controlled substance or a controlled substancef

analog; possessing with intent to manufacture, distribute or dehver a controlled substance
or a controlled substance analog.

Guideline 3. Provided the offense is substantially related to the circumstances of the licensed
activity, any person who has been convicted of, released from incarceration in a State or Federal
Prison System, or a county jail for, or released from parole or probation status, or has a current
charge pending, for two (2) or more offenses, arising out of separate incidents, within the last
seven (7) years in the following subcategories, does not qualify for an alcohol beverage license:

(2)  Disorderly conduct, criminal damage to property, solicitation of prostitution or other
: prostitution related offenses, wherein the offense mnvolves an incident at a place that is, or

should have beén licensed under Wis. Stat. Ch. 125.

(b)  Alcohol beverage offenses (under Wis. Stat. Ch. 125 or Franklin Ordinance Chs. 158 or
169 - excluding administrative violations such as “failure to post license under glass™)
(furnishing alcohol beverages to underage persons shall not be used as grounds for
suspeinision, revocation, or non-renewal of an existing license unless the licensee has
committed two (2) violations within a one (1) year period).

(c)  Perjury or false swearing, wherein the offense involves an incident at a place that is, or
should have been licensed under Wis. Stat. Ch. 125.

(d)  Possessing a controlled substance, controlled substance analog or drug paraphernalia.

(e)  Operating a motor vehicle while under the influence of intoxicants or drugs.

@ Operating a motor vehicle with a BAC in excess of .08% by weight.

(g)  Open intoxicants in public places or in a motor vehicle.
Gauideline 4. Provided the offenses are substantially related to the circumstances of the licensed
activity, any person who is an habitual law offender does not qualify for an alcohol beverage
license. To constitute an habitual law offender there need not have been a trial or conviction for
each or any offense. What is required is that the offenses were committed, that the law has been
violated, and that the fact of such violations can be shown. See Smith v. City of Oak Creek, 139
Wis. 2d 788 (1987). For purposes of these guidelines, an habitual offender includes, but is not

limited to a person who has committed two (2) or more offenses, each a separate incident, within the
immediately preceding five (5) years.

Guideline 5. In addition to the other provisions under these guidelines, pursuant to Wis. Stat §
125.12, a person’s alcohol beverage license may be denied, non-renewed, suspended or revoked if
the person:

@  Keeps or maintains a disorderly or riotous, indecent or improper house.

(b)-  Sold or has given away alcohol beverages to known habitual drunkards.

(c)  Does not possess the qualifications under Chapter 125 of the Wisconsin Statutes and
Chapters 158 and 169 of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin to hold a license.

(d) Was issued a license in conjunction with a wamning letter as to any future law violations,
regardless of whether the basis for the warning letter was conduct occurring earlier or
outside of any of the time limits set forth in Guidelines 2., 3. and 4. above, and has
committed a law violation subsequent to the issuance of the warning letter.

Guideline 6. Any person who materially falsifies an application for an alcohol beverage licens%”’
will not be eligible to re-apply for an alcohol beverage license for a period of six (6) months from
the date of denial of such application. The Committee within its review and recommendation process

Page 3 of 4
170

N



P

and the Common Council may waive the provisions of this paragraph, allow the applicant to submit a
corrected application, with the appropriate fee, and grant an alcohol beverage license to the person,
if it appears to the Common Council that any falsifications on the application were the result of

inadvertence, excusable neglect or mistake.

Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence or phrase of this Policy is for any reason held to
be invalid or unconstitutional by reason of a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such
decision shall not affect the validity of any other section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase.

Conflict. Any impermissible conflict between Wis. Stat. Ch. 125, Chs. 158 and 169 of the
Municipal Code of the City of Franklin and this policy shall be decided on the order of precedence
which shall be the order listed in this sentence:

This policy will go into effect on the 1st day of May, 2010.

Page 4 of 4



=

Notice to All Licensees:

Be sure you read and understand this publication. You are held responsible for
obeying Wisconsin’s Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Laws. Failure to follow these laws
may result in criminal prosecution, with penalties resulting in fines, imprisonment
and/or loss of license.

172



Information for
Wisconsin Alcohol
Beverage and Tobacco
Retailers

Includes information on:
Licenses and permits
Prohibited activities
Underage persons and minors

Vapor products

o
]
o
e Cigarette and tobacco products
e
e Video gambling

Publication 302 (11/21)




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
INTRODUCTION ....cvvetecuensessssssessssessesesesssssssesssssssessssssssssssasssssssessssssssssssssssassesssssessssssesssasessessasnasessassssissasess fﬂ\
DEFINITIONS «...ecvvveneeeeeeseseemesessssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssssssssasessssssssssssssssssssesasssssssssssssassssssssssnnns 4
MUNICIPAL RETAIL LICENSES ....c.ceeeeetteeiieiiisssssnnessssssssansssrsosssasssnstsssssssssssssssssssssnssentessssassansesssssssssessnssasssssssssannas 5
. N =Y V=) - | OO 5
B. LICENSE REQUITEIMENTS. c.ueeieeuieniieetietiic et eest st ae st e r e s s e s ar e s s bs e s b e s n s sas e s bn s s s san e e b b s s nesanesenseassessansnnasannas 5
OTHER LICENSES, PERMITS AND REGISTRATIONS ...covvicisrencessssrssssssarnerasssssssnnasssssansssssnssssssssnsessssassasssssssnsasssssanns 9
A, SEIIEI'S POIMIL ... vieeeiiieeeceirercieeesteeseeeecte e stese st eraeasstesssseessasesanesssasess sonmseassseasatssaaseeseesenmenssneeesaasesssnsasnsssesseessns 9
B. Federal Alcoho! Dealer REGISTIAtiON ......cccvecreecereeriieeerisesersesaitsasseeseseesanssessessesssesssessaeesaesssasssesssssassessnsessassaas 9
PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES.....ccocitiiimiinctnciemimmenitnsssessesaseastoescsosesscssnssas taesssssnssssssssssssssssassssssnsssasssssssessesssssasasnnsens 9
A. UNICENSEU PremiSes SAlES....iiiieeiireerierereeetessieseresesssssseesessssassasessssessnnessesssserstessssssssssessstssnsessasassasssssssesssanssnes 9
B. Sale 1O OthEr LICENSEES ....veereeeeeeereeieiteeteceeestsserstesassatesssstesssstassesstesssassessssessesasssesssnsesassassssenssassasssesassssessasnsanns 10
C. Sales t0 INTOXICATEA PEISONS ....cccceeeeeeeeceieeiecrsiesssarsessteeseesssesssneesnresssssessssseesesassssessssessaesssnsesssesssnsaseseessssessssnns 10
D. Refilled LIQUOT BOTLIES.....cciriereecertrcictrc sttt ettt st st s e e s s ss s sbesnasna e 10
E.  COTKABR FEES ..ottt 10
e LT YOO 10
G. MINTMUM IMAEKUD. ..t ecereceieiiteeteniisreesesssesseseessesiseseesssesseessesssnsessssssasasesssss sssasstsssesssesstasssssssessseassanssssesssesseaes 10
6. UNDERAGE PERSONS AND IMINORS ... .uccuetiiiiisssssinensiosisasssstessssssssnmmssmassnesssesssssssssssessssssssssnssosssssssssssssassssseassans 11
A. Entering LICENSEA PrEMISES ...cccvciviriuireeriir it tine e seseee st st st s e sresssesssesesessasessasssassesstesstesasessesssnassasssasssanns 11
B. Verifying Identification @nd ABE .......c.vcrieeirriereinertrees ettt ssaesreeseee s e se e s sresra s ae s st e s ae e s e e e sn e e saeeesae s 12
C. - POSSESSION DY UNUEIAEE PEISONS.....iveicierieiriesie it inesie et e st e sreessstessue e sstasaseereesteassessse franessesrnesasessnsesssssssssnnnns 4
D. Sales and Service 10 UNAErage PerSONS..... ..o i vvieeceeccttteccretrereeeecrreeeeessaesesseesesessesssstessensssnessessssssesssesene 14
E. EMPIOYING IMINOIS.c.ciiiiieiiiniietcienicstiercses s sttt st st st e st e sae et ssnessesassbesaesbasssansasasasnessensesssesnsenses 14
[ 0 1 1 =T OO YO PO OO OO 15
Gl PENAIIES oottt et et st et e b e st s et e et e e te e saaeeebe s et e enaeeeasen 15
RECORDKEEPING.......ccccecemrtiessnsenennsssnnssesssanessssssesssssstassssssossssisssssssssssssssssasssssasasesssssssesssnnnsesssassessessssnnnssessssnne 16
S 1 1Yo 1 ol OO SRS UTPRRN 16
B.  1dentification REGISTEN ... ciccvieieriirrictescr et et sre s ee s s s s e se e st e e st et e srbeenesersessnesansassnsenneesasssnns 16
OTHER ALCOHOL BEVERAGE INFORMATION......c.ciitiriiiicsrnersssrnnnnisisssssssssssnssnsenesesssssnsnssssssssassasernenesesssesssssssssns 17
A. Payment for AlCONOI BEVEIAEES .......cccevirieieiereeeertrtete et st e steesae st essessnasaeesessaestsssessessenrsssssnsssseseestesssasssennen 17
B. NONGICONOI BEVETAGES .....vvveieeiirreieeiertiretreet et ceerreerntessesssireesssnerssnnasssssasessessssesssesssessessesssrsssssseessresssnsssrenan 17
C. Temporary Class "B" and "Class B" LICENSES......cccicirrienriririesieerieereeseeseesessseesssssssesesseessessessessssansesresssesasesses 17
D. Inspection of LIcensed PremiSes......cucviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt see s eeee s st et esasrneaeseesbessessrnssresrnnennessssns 18
CIGARETTE AND TOBACCO PRODUCTS .....cccoocettrisssssensarorissnsessssssssssansarsessessesssassessesessssnssssessssssssassssnsasenseesserses 19
YW B T 1Yo 4 OO USRS 19
[ T ol =T o 13 RO e 19
[T 0T ol o - 3T OO OO OO ROOR R 20
[ Y 1 1= O OO SO SRRSO 20
B IVIINOTS veuieeeeeeereeersieestesesessese e e e e se s asse e aseseae st et et esetaesatt st esasansesasessesassnsesenssesssnasasesesassrsseneasassssssesensssssntsnaned
10 VAPOR PRODUCTS «...v.eveeeeessssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssassessessesssmssssseseeeesessesssessesssssssssssens 50
O B =Y 14 11 A o] L OO OO OO SO OSSP UUPPPPIPPPIOE 20
L= T =Y 1 4 111 OO OSSOSO SRSV SPRPIUPPRPP 21




[T - (=3 PPN

11. VIDEO GAMBLING ......ccueumemiiiireissirnnnnricesssssnensississsasssssrissssssssstssssssssssressessssssssssessasssessesssestesssssssassasasassssssssnnss 21
i WO =1 4 o] (o1 o 1 1=T o | SO OO T TR 22
R - TV T 1 - 1T T Y- OO USROS 22
ORI F- (=SSR SUR 22

12, RESOURCES....ccttuceeeoucrorerensennssmnnsmsranrsssssssncrsescserssssssesssseserassssssssssssassssssssssssssossssssansesstnsssnssssssssssaseensstsasansssnsenss 22
A. Wholesale Permit HOIAEIS LiSt........cocceieeieeieriieineestenieeisieseseesseessanessteseses st essssesneressseesassssansonsesasssssssassssnenses 22

> T S o 113 s Y=Y R U F=T Lol OSSR 23

C. AlCONOI BEVEIAEE NEBWS ......eeeieiiiiieeereeeritreeseeeccressteesseesssesssessssesssnsessssssssseessssssesssssassssssssseessessssssessssasessssesnns 23

D. DOR ASSISTANCE ....uueiiiiiisiitiiteirteireresteee e eststeesssseseseasstasasssesssesssesnseassssssnssesesstseesarnusesstsessseserasssssnsessssesassssensnses 23

%'\



Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

IMPORTANT CHANGES

e Publication Reorganization. The publication has been revised to group similar topics into sections. Substantivi
changes to the publication follow.

e Liquor Sales Limits. Effective June 26, 2019, the sale of intoxicating liquor for off-premises consumption by "Class
B" licensees is no longer limited to four liters at one time. Municipalities may enact ordinances allowing retail
"Class B" (liquor) license holders to sell intoxicating liquor in the original package or container in any quantity for
consumption off the licensed premises. Pages 8 and 9.

e Vapor Products. Effective October 1, 2019, an excise tax is imposed on the sale of liquid, gel, or other substances
used in e-cigarettes at the rate of 5 cents per milliliter of the liquid or other substance producing vapor or aerosol
for inhalation from the application of a heating element, regardless of whether the liquid contains nicotine.

Vapor product retailers without a tobacco products distributor permit purchasing untaxed vapor products must
obtain a vapor products distributor's permit and file tax returns. For additional information see Fact Sheet 3501.
Pages 20 and 21.

e [Music Festivals. Effective May 26, 2017, unaccompanied underage persons are allowed on the alcohol licensed
premises of a music festival venue during an event with a projected attendance of at least 2,500 persons.
Page 12.

e Permit Listings. The Department of Revenue (DOR) now publishes on its website lists of permittees from whom
retailers may purchase beer, cigarettes, and tobacco. Go to www.revenue.wi.gov, click on Reports and then
search "permit". Page 22.

¢ False Information Penalty. Effective July 1, 2018, a penalty of not more than $1,000 may be imposed on any
person who knowingly provides materially false information in an alcohol beverage cigarette or tobacco produc* ”
license or permit application. Page 8. . -

1. INTRODUCTION

This publication provides information about Wisconsin's alcohol beverage, tobacco, and vapor products laws that
affect retailers. The information summarizes laws in chs. 125, 134, 139, and 945 Wis. Stats.

Municipal ordinances may also affect retailers. Contact your municipal clerk if you have questions about local
ordinances.

2. DEFINITIONS

The following terms are used for purposes of this publication.
Adult — A person 18 years of age or older.

Alcohol Beverages — A statutory term which includes beer, wine, and liquor.

Beer — A fermented malt beverage under chapter 125, Wis. Stats.

—

Rerrl #n Trhlo nf }'Zefnnfc



Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

5

r

Cider — An alcohol beverage obtained by fermentation of the juice of apples or pears that contains 0.5 to 7.0 percent
alcohol by volume. "Cider" may be flavored, sparkling, and/or carbonated.

Class "A" Beer License — Authorizes the retail sale of beer in the original sealed containers for consumption off the
licensed premises.

"Class A" Liquor License — Authorizes the retail sale of liquor, including wine and cider, in the original containers for
consumption off the licensed premises.

"Class A" (Cider Only) License — Authorizes the retail sale of cider, but no other intoxicating liquor, in the original
containers for consumption off the licensed premises

Class "B" Beer License — Authorizes the retail sale of beer for consumption on and off the licensed premises.

"Class B" Liquor License — Authorizes the retail sale of liquor by the glass for consumption on or off the licensed
premises and, if allowed by municipal ordinance, in the original sealed container for off-premises consumption.

"Class C" Wine License — Authorizes the retail sale of wine by the glass for consumption on the licensed premises.

Intoxicating Liquor (or Liquor) — Alcohol beverages, except beer, containing 0.5% or more alcohol by volume,
including wine.

Legal Drinking Age — 21 years of age.
Minor — A person under 18 years of age.

Painting Studio — An establishment primarily engaged in the business of providing to customers instruction in the
art of painting that offers customers the opportunity to purchase food and beverage for consumption while they
paint.

Provisional Retail License — Authorizes activities of a regular retail licenses for 60 days or until a regular license is
issued, whichever is sooner.

Underage Person — A person who is not of legal drinking age.

MUNICIPAL RETAIL LICENSES

A. General

A license is a privilege granted by a municipality (city, village, or town) to a person (e.g., natural person,
partnership, limited liability company, or corporation) that authorizes the sale of alcohol beverages for a
specified time period. The governing body of the municipality may, but is not required to, issue retail liquor and
beer licenses. The municipality may refuse to issue retail licenses if it uses good judgment and does not
discriminate between applicants.

B. License Requirements

License requirements and who may issue them are provided by Wisconsin statute and established by ordinance.
License requirements for all retail licenses and specific licenses follow.
(1) All Licenses

e Face-to-Face Sales at Licensed Premises — With limited exceptions, alcohol beverages may only be sold
to consumers who are physically at the licensed premises. (secs. 125.272 and 125.51(6), Wis. Stats.)




Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

Example: The following sales of alcohol beverages are prohibited because they were not made face-to-
face with the consumer on the licensed premises: —~

o Customer phones Pizza Parlor, which holds a Class "B" beer license. Customer orders a pizza ai
six-pack of beer for delivery to their home.

o Aperson calls Liquor Store and requests two half-barrels of beer delivered to their home.

o Ahome-delivery grocery service takes an internet order for the sale and delivery of wine and beer
for a holiday party, receiving payment electronically.

Closing Hours — Customers must leave the premises by the closing hour noted under the specific licenses
below. Internal business operations, such as counting cash, cleaning, repairs, etc., may be done after
hours, but licensees must prove that anyone on the premises after hours is there for these purposes.

Exceptions:

o Class "A" premises may remain open for the conduct of regular business but may not sell beer
between 12 midnight and 6 a.m., or at any other time during which the sale of beer is prohibited by
a municipal ordinance.

o The following businesses holding "Class B" and Class "B" licenses may remain open after closing
hours noted below to conduct their regular business, although they may not permit consumption
of, or sell, alcohol beverages after those closing hours:

v" Hotels and restaurants whose "principal business" is furnishing lodging and food to customers

"Principal business" means the primary activity as determined by analyzing the amount of
capital, labor, time, attention, and floor space devoted to each business activity and by analyzing
the sources of net income and gross income. The name, appearance, and advertising of ’r"m
entity may also be considered if given less weight. ‘ (-

Bowling centers

Movie theaters

Painting studios

Indoor horseshoe-pitching facilities
Indoor golf and baseball facilities

Golf courses and clubhouses

AN N N N N N

Curling clubs
v Racetrack grounds as defined in sec. 125.27(5)(a), Wis. Stats.

For determining closing hours, Daylight Saving Time begins at 2:00 a.m. the second Sunday in March
and ends at 2:00 a.m. the first Sunday in November. Therefore:

o Clocks are set ahead one hour at 2:00 a.m. the second Sunday in March. Taverns must close at 3:30
a.m. Central Daylight Time on this date.

o On the first Sunday in November, the clocks are set back an hour at 2:00 a.m. Taverns must close at
2:30 a.m. Central Standard Time.

Licensed Premises Supervision — Except in Class "A" beer premises between midnight and 6:00 a.m. (or
any time when the sale of beer is prohibited by municipal ordinance), one of the following must be

present on licensed premises during business hours: ¢

i

o Licensee

o Person with an operator's or manager's license

Dearnls bn Todoln A& rl..ZB-..&.-



i

Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

(2)

o Adult member of licensee's immediate family (living in the licensee's household)
o Corporation's or limited liability company's agent
o Provisional operator's license holder

The holder must be enrolled in the responsible beverage server training course pending approval of
the operator's license. ’

Note: "Immediate supervision" means the licensed person must be able to watch and supervise each
unlicensed person's actions. The licensed person must be in the same room or area as the unlicensed
person or near enough to see and talk to him or her.

An adult working under the immediate supervision of any of the above does not need an operator's
license.

An operator's license is only valid in the municipality where it has been issued. It does not apply in other
municipalities.

Licensees may be prosecuted for not having the required supervision on their premises.

Alcohol Beverage Seller/Server Training Course — As a condition of licensing, applicants must
successfully complete an approved alcohol beverage seller/server training course, unless the person:

o lIsrenewing a retail or an operator's (bartender's) license

o Was an agent within the last two years for a corporation or limited liability company that held a
Class "A" beer, Class "B" beer, "Class A" liquor, "Class A" (cider only), "Class B" liquor, or "Class C"
wine license

o Held aretail license or an operator's or manager's license during the past two years
o Completed an approved course within the past two years

Approved classroom and online courses are listed on the DOR's website at revenue.wi.gov; search
"Alcohol Seller/Server."”

Display Framed License — All alcohol beverage licenses must be framed and displayed in the room where
the licensed activity occurs. Anyone visiting the business should easily see the licenses. Any related
permits and licenses (e.g., seller's permit) should be displayed with the alcohol beverage license.

Provisional Retail License

Issued by a designated municipal official only to a person applying for a Class "A" beer, Class "B" beer,
"Class A" liquor, "Class B" liquor, or "Class C" wine licenses.

Fee determined locally not to exceed $15.
Expires 60 days after issuance or when the person is issued a license, whichever occurs first.

May be revoked and/or penalty imposed of not more than $1,000 if issuing official discovers the holder
knowingly provided false information in the application.

"Class B" liquor license may not be issued if it would exceed the municipality's quota.

Not more than one provisional retail license may be issued for each type of license applied for by the
holder per year.

(3) Class "A" Beer License

Authorizes the retail sale of beer in the original sealed containers for consumption off the licensed

premises in any quantity.




Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

e Beer sales are prohibited between 12 midnight and 6:00 a.m.

e Municipalities may further restrict sales hours by local ordinance. o,

L

e May give customers two free 3-ounce taste samples between 11:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m.

(4) "Class A" Liquor License

(5)

(6)

(7)

e Authorizes the retail sale of liquor, including wine and ciaer, in the original containers for consumption
off the licensed premises in any quantity.

e Intoxicating liquor sales are prohibited between 9:00 p.m. - 6:00 a.m.
e Municipalities may further restrict sales hours by local ordinance.

e Unless prohibited by municipal ordinance, may give customers two free 3-ounce taste samples of wine
between 11:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m.

e May give customers one free 0.5-ounce taste sample of intoxicating liquor, except wine, between
11:00 a.m.—7:00 p.m.

"Class A" (Cider Only) Liquor License

e Authorizes the retail sale of cider in the original containers for consumption off the licensed premises
in any quantity.

e Issued only to persons holding a Class "A" beer license for the same premises.

¢ Unless prohibited by municipal ordinance, may give customers two free 3-ounce taste samples of ,
cider between 11:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. ‘

Class "B" Beer License
e  Authorizes the retail sale of beer for consumption on and off the licensed premises in any quantity. The
premises must be closed between the following hours:
o Monday through Friday —2:00 a.m. to 6:00 a.m.
o Saturday and Sunday —2:30 a.m. to 6:00 a.m.
o Second Sunday in March —3:30 a.m. to 6:00 a.m.
Closing is not required on New Year's Eve.
Municipalities may not further restrict the closing hours.
o Beer sales for off-premises consumption are prohibited between 12:00 midnight and 6:00 a.m.

Municipalities may further restrict these sales hours by local ordinance.

"Class B" Liquor License

* Authorizes the retail sale of liquor by the glass for consumption on or off the licensed premises.

e A single, open bottle of wine may be taken off the licensed premises if ordered with a meal,
accompanied by a dated receipt, and re-corked prior to taking off the licensed premises.

e Wine may be sold in its original container, in any quantity, for on and off-premises consumption. {

N

e Closing hours are the same as Class "B" beer license.

T



Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

4.

5.

Exception: A winery that has a "Class B" (wine only) license issued under sec. 125.51(3)(am), Wis. Stats.,
must close between 9:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m.

e A municipality may allow "Class B" licensees to make retail sales of intoxicating liquor for
off-premises consumption. Check with your municipality to see if this is allowed.

(8) "Class C" Wine License

o Authorizes the retail sale of wine by the glass for consumption on the licensed premises.

o A single, open bottle of wine may be taken off the licensed premises if ordered with a meal,
accompanied by a dated receipt, and re-corked prior to taking off the licensed premises.

o Closing hours are generally the same as Class "B" beer license.

OTHER LICENSES, PERMITS AND REGISTRATIONS

A. Seller's Permit

Every individual, partnership, corporation, or other organization that sells, leases, rents, or licenses tangible
personal property (e.g., alcohol beverages), taxable services and other taxable products in Wisconsin must have
a seller's permit, unless all sales are exempt from Wisconsin sales or use tax.

Example: A nonprofit organization's sales of tangible personal property, including alcohol beverages, taxable
services, and other taxable products are exempt from Wisconsin sales or use tax as occasional sales if (1) its
sales of taxable products do not occur on more than 75 days during the calendar year or taxable sales do not
exceed $50,000 for the calendar year, (2) entertainment at an admission event is not paid more than $10,000,
and (3) it does not hold a seller's permit. For more information about the occasional sales exemption for
nonprofit organizations, see Wisconsin Publication 206, Sales Tax Exemptions for Nonprofit Organizations,

The alcohol beverage license and seller's permit must be issued in the same legal name (see exception below).
If the alcohol beverage license is issued to a partnership or corporation, the seller's permit must be also. A
limited liability company's (LLC) alcohol beverage license must be in the LLC's legal name, not the trade name
or owner's name.

Exception: If an alcohol beverage license is issued to an LLC, disregarded for income tax purposes, with a single
member (owner), the LLC's seller's permit may be issued in the name of the single owner. If an LLC applies for
an alcohol beverage license and furnishes a seller's permit that is not in the legal name of the LLC, the
municipality should call DOR at (608) 266-2776 or email DORSalesandUse@wisconsin.gov to verify whether the
seller's permit is valid for the LLC. '

Federal Alcohol Dealer Registration

Before beginning business, every retail licensee must register as an alcohol dealer with the federal Department
of Treasury, Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and Trade Bureau (TTB), using Form 5630.5d. Once registered, any change
to legal name, trade name, address, premises location, telephone number, business type, or FEIN should be
reported before the subsequent July 1 using the same form.

PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES

A. Unlicensed Premises Sales

The sale of alcohol beverages at an unlicensed premises is prohibited (see sec. 125.06, Wis. Stats., for a list of
exceptions).




Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

G.

"Sale," "sold," or "sell" includes the transfer, gift, barter, trade, exchange, or any shift, device, scheme, or other
transaction to obtain alcohol beverages. ’

Sale to Other Licensees '
Sales of alcohol beverages by an alcohol beverage licensee to another retail licensees for resale are prohibited.
Exception: If a licensed business is sold, it may transfer its sealed liquor, wine, and beer (alcohol beverage)

inventory to another retail licensee in Wisconsin. Cigarettes and tobacco products may not be similarly
transferred.

In place of invoices, list the entire sealed inventory of the stock transferred using Form AT 900, Alcohol Beverage
Stock Transfer, available at revenue.wi.gov. Make a copy for the buyer and keep the original for your records.
The buyer must keep the copy on its licensed premises for two years.

Sales to Intoxicated Persons

It is illegal to furnish alcohol beverages to an intoxicated person. The penalty for this violation is a fine of $100
to $500, imprisonment for not more than 60 days, or both.

Refilled Liquor Bottles

It is illegal to refill liquor bottles with any substance, even the same brand of liquor.

When a bottle is empty, deface its label. Break the bottle unless placed in a container marked "For Recycling
Only."

¢
€

Corkage Fees

If the restaurant has an alcohol beverage license, the only alcohol beverages allowed on the premises are those
purchased by the restaurant from a permitted Wisconsin wholesaler. The retailer must have invoices from the
wholesaler showing which products were purchased from the wholesaler.

Wisconsin alcohol beverage law does not permit "corkage fees." These fees, charged by restaurants, allow
patrons to carry in their own alcohol beverages for consumption on the restaurant premises.

If the restaurant does not have an alcohol beverage license, consumption of alcohol beverages is prohibited.
The restaurant owner can be criminally charged for allowing illegal consumption on the premises.

Giveaways

Giving away alcohol beverages or using any other device to evade the law relating to its sale is illegal. Examples
of these illegal transactions at unlicensed premises include:

o A "free" drink with a meal
e A cover charge where mix is furnished at a price with "no charge" for liquor

o A'"free" bottle of liquor tied to the sale of some other item

Violators may be fined not more than $10,000 or imprisoned for not more than nine months, or both.

Minimum Markup

Rerrl A Trahls Af A&nn*e




Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

6.

Alcohol beverages may not be sold at less than cost. Cost includes a presumptive 3% markup by wholesalers
and 6% by retailers.

For questions on cigarette and tobacco products pricing and markup, contact the Wisconsin Department of
Agriculture, Trade & Consumer Protection, Trade Practices, at (608) 224-4925 or (608) 224-4989.

UNDERAGE PERSONS AND MINORS

A. Entering Licensed Premises

No retail licensee may allow an underage person to enter any part of the licensed premises for any purpose
unless an exception applies.

Retailers should demand proof of age of anyone entering the premises who appears to be under the legal
drinking age. Customers may prove age with one of the following, if valid:

e Driver's license
e StateID card
e Military ID card
e U.S. passport

e ID card issued by a federally recognized American Indian tribe or band in Wisconsin
e Any other form of identification or proof of age acceptable to the licensee

DOR recommends anyone who has shown proof of legal drinking age to sign an ID register book if the person's
age is in question. Record the date of purchase, the identification used, the address, and the signature of the
purchaser in the book. The book should be kept on the premises and available for inspection by any peace
officer. (sec. 125.07(7), Wis. Stats.)

Exceptions: An underage person may enter a licensed premises if the underage person is:

e Accompanied by their parent, guardian, or spouse of legal drinking age.

* Enteringa Class "A" or "Class A" licensed premises to buy items other than alcohol beverages. The underage
person may not stay on the premises after the purchase.

e An employee, resident, lodger, or boarder on the premises.
¢ Entering to do business other than amusement or the purchase or consumption of food and beverages.
¢ Entering to buy food in a restaurant whose "principal business" is serving food.

e Entering and remaining in a dance hall or banquet or hospitality room attached to a Class B licensed
premises to attend a banquet, reception, dance, or similar event.

e Entering the following premises:

o bowling center o movie theater

o car operated by a railroad o painting studio

o center for visual or performing art o private tennis or soccer club

o curling club o racetrack licensed under ch. 562, Wis. Stats.
o drugstore o regularly established athletic field

114

100



Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302
o golf course or clubhouse service station
o grocery store ski chalet P
o hotel stadiums !
o indoor golf simulator facility vessel
o billiards center having 12 or more billiards tables music festival venues with projected attendance
(not coin-operated) eight feet or longer of at least 2,500 persons
o county or municipally owned public facility as privately owned fish farm that provides
defined in sec. 125.51(5)(b), Wis. Stats. recveational fishing opportunities to the public
for a fee and is registered under sec. 95.60(3m)
(alcohol sales less than 30%)
o indoor golf and baseball facility on premises State Fair Park and concessions in state park or
holding a Class "B" license forest, or park owned by an agricultural society
o indoor (at least 9 by 18 meters) or outdoor

()

volleyball court

e Entering a Class "B" beer or "Class B" liquor licensed premises:

(o]

to do business at an auction or flea market. In this case, the underage person may not enter any room
where alcohol beverages are sold, furnished, or possessed

room where no alcohol beverages are sold, furnished, served, or consumed by anyone when the
underage person is present

This applies only if the municipality adopts an ordinance allowing it. The local law enforcement age”
must authorize, in writing, the presence of underage persons on the date of the authorizatior.
separate authorization is necessary for each date on which underage persons will be on the premises.
(sec. 125.07(3)(a)(8), Wis. Stats.)

On a date specified by the license when no alcohol beverages are consumed, sold, or given away

The licensee, the agent named on the license (if a corporation), or a person with an operator's license
must be on the premises unless all alcohol beverages are in locked storage. The licensee must notify the
local law enforcement agency, in advance, when underage persons are on the premises.
(sec. 125.07(3)(a)(10), Wis. Stats.)

* Atleast 18 years old and working under a contract with a licensee, permittee, or corporate agent to provide
entertainment for customers on the premises.

* Acting as a designated driver on the premises of a temporary Class "B" (picnic) beer or "Class B" (wine only)

licensee authorized to permit underage persons on the premises by the official or body of the municipality
that issued the license.

The licensee must identify the underage person using a wristband or similar item while on the premises.

B. Verifying Identification and Age

(1) Reviewing ID Cards and Driver's Licenses

TR LT ST AT AR A PG S ey, e

Ask pertinent questions about the ID presented. For example, if an ID card is presented as proof of age,
ask how the driving was on the way to the establishment. If the person was driving, ask to see his or’
driver's license. %

Necins”

Check the card's expiration date. Only valid proof of age should be accepted.

Look for "Under 18" or "Under 21" feature on the card.

Rerarl #n Trhlo ~AFf fln&4nn~h-



Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

(2)

e Look for "duplicate” stamp on the card. If a duplicate, ask what happened to the original.
e Ifthe card is a Real ID-compliant card, look for a star in the top right corner.

e Ask for additional documentation verifying his or her identity (e.g., credit, debit, or insurance card with
their name). People with false IDs rarely carry backup documentation, but most people have several
forms.

e Look for laser engraved personal information, signature, and other features unique to Wisconsin ID
cards.

e Ask questions about information on the card, such as address, birth date, middle initial, or spelling of
last name. If the person doesn't answer to your satisfaction, you may refuse service and ask that person
to leave.

e Compare presented driver's license to yours. See (2) below for characteristics of a false ID card or
driver's license.

® Usean ID Checking Guide, especially in areas with a heavy out-of-state population (colleges, tourist
communities). Several commercial companies publish guides that picture all states' driver's licenses.

False ID Card and Driver's License Characteristics

o  Glue lines. '

e Bumpy surfaces by the picture or birth date. Any surface area inconsistent with the rest of the ID usually
indicates tampering.

* Overlay of reprinted numbers (and a shadowy or cloudy image). The ID card may have been opened to
alter numbers.

® Missing spots on the state logo. A person who alters an ID may not pay attention to one of the most
obvious clues on the card.

® Letters and numbers font type, color, and size; line spacing, or word and image placement may differ
from valid ID cards and driver's licenses. How may digits for expiration and birth date? Are numbers
consistent?

* Lack of security features (ultraviolet or micro printing). Use a blacklight and magnifying glass to check
for security features. !

* Reverse side is unfinished. Often a person altering an ID will spend significant time on reproducing an
authentic-looking photo board but merely photocopy the reverse side. These are often blurred, a sure
sign of photocopying.

¢ Weight or size is different. Bend the card, feel it. How does it feel compared to an authentic card? Does
it measure the same?

e Colors vary from an authentic ID or license.

® Corners of the card are uneven and jagged rather than well-rounded and smooth. This is one of the best
methods for detecting counterfeit cards.

o Shadows or glare on the picture or eye redness. Most driver licensing station cameras are set to avoid
these problems.

* Laminate differs from authentic card or license. Is it clear or cloudy?




Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

(3) Retaining Proof of Age

No person who holds a license or permit, and no employee of such a person, is civilly liable for retain® ™
document presented as proof of age. The document may be retained for a reasonable length of time ... a
good faith effort to (a) determine whether the person who presented the document is underage or (2) notify
law enforcement of a suspected violation for carrying a false ID. (sec. 125.039, Wis. Stats.)

C. Possession by Underage Persons

An underage person may not possess alcohol beverages anywhere unless accompanied by a parent, guardian,
or spouse of legal drinking age. This does not apply to underage persons employed by the following types of
licensees or permittees, in the course of their employment:

Brewers and brewpubs

Beer wholesalers

Liquor wholesalers

Facilities producing alcohol fuel

Retail licensees or permittees, under the provisions of secs. 125.32(2) and 125.68(2), Wis. Stats. (laws
covering operator's licenses), or for delivery of unopened containers to the home or vehicle of a customer

Campuses, if the underage person is at least 18 years of age and is under the immediate supervision of a
person of legal drinking age

(sec. 125.07(4)(b) and (bm), Wis. Stats.)

D. Sales and Service to Underage Persons

An underage person accompanied by their parent, guardian, or spouse of legal drinking age may be sold or
served alcohol beverages in any licensed premises, if allowed by the establishment. (sec. 125.07(1), Wis. Stats.)

E. Employing Minors

Minors under 14 years old may not be employed where alcohol beverages are sold.

Exception: Minors 12 years or older may be employed at a business owned by their parent, even though
beverages are sold.

Minors 14 years or older (including minors that are 12 or 13 years old under the exception above) may be
employed where alcohol beverages are stored, sold, or served if they are not serving, selling, dispensing, or
giving away alcohol beverages, or acting as bouncers, crowd controllers, or identification checkers. This

applies to all places licensed to sell alcohol beverages, including stores, service stations, bars, and
restaurants.

Minors may not be employed or appear as musicians, singers, performers, or dancers at roadhouses, dance
halls, night clubs, taverns, or similar places, except:

o Minors 16 or 17 years old may be employed or appear as musicians in a hall on Friday, Saturday, or any
other day not followed by a school day, or before midnight on Sunday, if the hall was rented to celebrate
a special event such as a wedding, holiday, birthday, or anniversary.

o Minors may be employed or appear at dances held solely for minors that are conducted by privateéiws
or civic organizations where admission is limited to the club membership or by club invitation and the
general public is excluded.

and sec. DWD 270, Wis. Adm. Code)

:i (sec. 103.78, Wis. Stats.,

R TR T A T PR

Back to Tahle of &gﬁtents



Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

F. Other

No one may falsely represent that they are of legal drinking age to ask for or obtain alcohol beverages in
any licensed premises. (sec. 125.07(4), Wis. Stats.)

No one may possess or consume alcohol beverages in a public, parochial, or private school, through 12th
grade, or in a vehicle owned by, rented, or consigned to a school or while participating in a school activity,
without the express, written permission of the school administrator (sec. 125.09(2), Wis. Stats.). Permission
may not be given to underage persons.

A licensed alcohol beverage retailer may bring a civil action against a person who violates the state's
underage drinking law, if the following conditions are met:

o The conduct must occur on the retailer's premises

o The retailer must mail notice of the intent to bring action to the underage person or the underage
person's parent, as applicable, at least 15 days prior to filing the action

o The retailer must not have been convicted of, received a citation for, or been charged with a violation
of the underage drinking law

o The retailer must have reported the suspected conduct to law enforcement at or near the time when
the conduct was first discovered

This provision does not apply if the underage person was employed by or assisting a law enforcement
agency in carrying out enforcement to determine compliance with or investigating potential violations
of the prohibition on underage persons in licensed premises. A retailer prevailing in the civil action shall
be awarded $1,000 in damages and the costs of bringing the civil action. (sec. 125.07(4)(f), Wis. Stats.)

G. Penalties

Nagiw”

Entry — Alcohol beverage licensees permitting unaccompanied underage persons to unlawfully enter the
premises are subject to a forfeiture of not more than $500. (sec. 125.07(3), Wis. Stats.)

Age Misrepresentation — An unaccompanied underage person unlawfully entering a licensed premises or
misrepresenting their age to obtain alcohol beverages is subject to a $250 to $500 forfeiture, suspension of
motor vehicle operating privileges under sec. 343.30(6)(b)1, Wis. Stats., participation in a supervised work
program, or a combination of these penalties.

Sale — A person selling or furnishing alcohol beverages to an unaccompanied underage person is:

o Required to forfeit not more than $500 if the person has not committed a previous violation within 30
months of the violation

o Fined not more than $500 or imprisoned for not more than 30 days or both if the person has committed
a previous violation within 30 months of the violation

o Fined not more than $1,000 or imprisoned for not more than 90 days or both if the person has
committed 2 previous violations within 30 months of the violation

o Fined not more than $10,000 or imprisoned for not more than 9 months or both if the person has
committed 3 or more previous violations within 30 months of the violation (sec. 125.07(1), Wis. Stats.)

If a violation occurs on a licensed premises and is detected by means of an undercover underage person
employed by or assisting a law enforcement agency, only the individual responsible for providing the alcohol
beverages to the underage person may be issued a citation for, or charged with, the violation.

School Possession — Anyone unlawfully possessing or consuming alcohol beverages on a school premises,
in a school vehicle, or while participating in a school activity is subject to a forfeiture of not more than $200

(sec. 125.09(2)(d), Wis. Stats.)




Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

7.

e License Holder Violations — The alcohol beverage license of any person committing a violatio:

Exception: A disposition in the proceedings against an underage person is provided by secs. 125.07(4)(c)
and (d) and 938.344, Wis. Stats. {m\

sec. 125.07(1), Wis. Stats., must be suspended for:
o Not more than 3 days if a second violation is committed within 12 months of a previous violation.

o Not less than 3 days nor more than 10 days if a third violation is committed within 12 months of two
previous violations.

o Not less than 15 days nor more than 30 days if a fourth violation is committed within 12 months after
committing three other violations.

e False Identification Provided to Underage Person — Anyone other than a person authorized by

secs. 125.085 or 343.50, Wis. Stats., who makes, alters, or duplicates an official identification ("ID") card,
provides an official ID card to an underage person, or kncwingly provides other documentation to an
underage person claiming that the underage person is of legal drinking age may be fined not less than $300
nor more than $1,250 or imprisoned not less than ten days nor more than thirty days, or both.

If violated for money or other consideration, the person is guilty of a Class | felony.

* False Identification by Underage Persons — Any underage person who does any of the following may be

penalized. For a first violation, a $300 to $1,250 forfeiture, suspension of the person's driving privileges,
participation in a supervised work program, or any combination of these penalties.

o Intentionally carries an official ID card not legally issued to him or her, an official ID card obtained under
false pretenses, or an official ID card which has been altered or duplicated to give false information.

o Makes, alters, or duplicates an official ID card.

%

o Gives false information in applying for an official ID card.

o Intentionally carries an ID card or other documentation showing that he or she is of legal drinking age,
knowing that the documentation is false.

o Provides to another underage person an official ID card or other documentation claiming that the other
underage person is of legal drinking age, knowing that the documentation is false.

RECORDKEEPING

A.

Invoices
Every licensed retailer must keep paper or electronic copies of all purchase invoices for alcohol beverages on
the licensed premises for two years from the date of the invoice. Invoices should be kept in chronological

order and be available for inspection during all reasonable hours. (sec. 139.11(1), Wis. Stats.)

Identification Register

DOR recommends that every licensee keep an identification (ID) register. Record the identity of a person who
alleges they are:

e Legal drinking age.

¢ Underage person's parent, guardian, or spouse and of legal drinking age.

Include the date of purchase, type of identification used, address, and signature of the person. Verifyi?ﬁ'é’
signatures in the book and on the person's ID match.

(sec. 125.07(7), Wis. Stats.)

g S ——— T T et ot s = et nenaa o e e e e e e e e e e e e

Back to Table of Ch¥dents



Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

8.

A "Proof of Age Register" or "ldentification Register Book" may be purchased from:

e Tavern League of Wisconsin, 2817 Fish Hatchery Road, Fitchburg, Wi, 53713-5005, phone: (608) 270-8591,
website: tlw.org.

e Wisconsin Grocers Association, 10 West Mifflin, Ste. 205, Madison, WI, 53703, phone: (608) 244-7150,
website: wisconsingrocers.com.

OTHER ALCOHOL BEVERAGE INFORMATION

A. Payment for Alcohol Beverages

A licensee may only buy liquor or beer for cash or on credit terms for a period not to exceed:

e Beer-15days
e Liquor- 30 days

Alicensee in debt to a wholesaler beyond the above time periods may not purchase alcohol beverages from the
wholesaler. A person may not be issued a license if he or she exceeds these limits.

Nonalcohol Beverages

Beverages that contain less than 0.5% alcohol by volume are not alcohol beverages regulated by ch. 125, Wis.
Stats. Therefore, nonalcohol (NA) "beer," and mocktails may be sold in the same manner as water and sodas
(e.g., regardless of age).

These beverages should not be confused with those labeled "low alcohol" (LA), which generally contain 3.2%
alcohol, and are regulated by ch. 125, Wis. Stats.

Temporary Class "B" and "Class B" Licenses

Temporary Class "B" beer and "Class B" wine only licenses (picnic licenses) are short-term authorizations that
allow the following organizations to make retail sales of alcohol beverages at a particular picnic or similar
gathering, at a meeting of the post, or during a fair:

e Dbona fide clubs and chambers of commerce

e county or local fair associations or agricultural societies

e churches, lodges, or societies that have been in existence for at least 6 months before the date of application
e posts of veterans' organizations

Temporary licenses may also be issued to authorize a "wine walk" or "beer walk." This is a single day event at
which customers are served a glass of beer or wine at multiple locations (e.g., jewelry stores, art galleries,
clothing boutiques, salons, furniture stores, etc.) during shopping visits.

(1) Requirements

Requirements that apply to other alcohol beverage licensees also apply to Temporary "Class B" wine and
Temporary Class "B" beer licensees, including:

o Licensed operators (person's holding an operator's license, also known as a "bartender's license")
serving the wine or beer and/or supervising serving wine or beer.

174

40N



Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

D.

(2)

e Temporary operator's licenses may be issued to persons employed by or donating services to the
qualified organization for the event. A person may hold two temporary operator's licenses per year. ‘,

e Licensees must purchase all wine and beer from liquor or beer wholesalers and breweries/brewf
authorized to self-distribute to retail licensees.

Form AT-315, Application for Temporary Class "B" / "Class B" Retailer's License, is submitted by the
qualifying organization to the municipality to apply for a Temporary Class "B" beer or Temporary "Class B"
wine license. Applicants for a wine walk or beer walk should attach to the application a list of participating

locations and premises descriptions or submit a separate application for each location participating in the
event.

Wine Walk

A municipality may issue to the same qualified organization up to 20 Temporary "Class B" wine licenses for
the same date and time. The qualified organization is the licensee and sponsor of the single-day, multiple-
location event. The following requirements apply:

* Admission fees must be charged for participation in the event and no additional fees may be charged
for service of alcohol beverages at the event

e Municipalities may authorize the licensee to permit unaccompanied underage persons on the licensed
premises if the underage person is a designated driver and is identified by the licensee (e.g., wristband)

* No person may serve wine after 9:00 p.m. on the licensed premises

* Qualified organizations may receive Temporary "Class B" (wine) licenses for up to two events during a
12-month period =

f2

e Municipalities are limited to 2 wine walks within any 12-month period.

(3) BeerWalk

A municipality may issue to the same qualified organization an unlimited number of Temporary Class "B"
beer licenses for the same date and time. The qualified organization is the licensee and sponsor of the single-
day, multiple-location event. The following requirements apply:

* Admission fees must be charged for participation in the event and no additional fees may be charged
for service of alcohol beverages at the event

* Municipalities may authorize the licensee to permit underage persons on the licensed premises
o Sales for off-premises consumption must end by midnight, or earlier if required by municipal ordinance

* Municipalities may charge up to $10 for each Temporary Class "B" beer or Temporary "Class B" wine
license issued for the single-day, multiple-location event.

Inspection of Licensed Premises

Licensed premises may be inspected by law enforcement officers during all reasonable hours, including business
hours. All rooms connected to the barroom, sales room, or storage area may be inspected as part of the licensed

premised. Refusing to permit an inspection is grounds for revocation or suspension of the license. (sec.
139.08(4), Wis. Stats.)

Alcohol beverages, cigarettes, tobacco products, and personal property identified in violation of the statlres
may be seized.

Back to Table of Cditents

mA



Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers. Publication 302

9. CIGARETTE AND TOBACCO PRODUCTS

T

ra

A. Definitions

e (Cigarette — any roll of tobacco wrapped in paper or any substance other than tobacco.
¢ Nicotine Product —a product that contains nicotine and is not any of the following:

o tobacco product

o ‘ cigarette

o product approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration for sale as a smoking cessation product or
for another medical purpose that is marketed and sold solely for the approved purpose.

e Tobacco products - include:
o cavendish
o cheroots
o cigars
o fine cut and other chewing tobaccos
o granulated, plug cut, crimp cut, ready-rubbed, and other smoking tobacco
o periques
o plug and twist tobacco

o refuse scraps, clippings, cuttings and sweepings of tobacco and other kinds and forms of tobacco
prepared in such manner as to be suitable for chewing or smoking in a pipe or otherwise, or both for
chewing and smoking

o shorts
o snuff flour
o snuff, including moist snuff

o stogies
"Tobacco products” does not include cigarettes, as defined under sec. 139.30 (1m).
B. Licenses

A license from a municipality is required to directly or indirectly sell, expose for sale, possess with intent to sell,
or give away any cigarettes or tobacco products in any manner or upon any pretense or by any device.

The following provisions apply:

® Training — Retailers are required to provide training to employees whose duties include the sale of
cigarettes, tobacco products, or nicotine products. The training must be an approved program by the
Department of Health Services.

 Inspection / Confiscation - Licensed premises may be inspected by law enforcement officers during all
reasonable hours, including business hours. Refusal to permit inspection is punishable by fine,
imprisonment, or both.

e All cigarettes or tobacco products kept in violation of the laws and all personal property used in
connection is subject to seizure.

~—

1Nn1%

Downle oon Taclolo o P B2



Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

10.

¢ Recordkeeping — Every licensed retailer must keep purchase invoices for cigarettes and tobacco products
on the licensed premises for two years from the date of the invoice. Invoices should be kept in
chronological order and be available for inspection during all reasonable hours. (sec. 134.65(4), Wis. gf%\’
Stats.) ‘

C. Purchases

Retailers must purchase cigarettes and tobacco products from a manufacturer, distributor or jobber who holds
a valid permit from DOR. If a retailer purchases tobacco products from an out-of-state company that does not
have a permit from DOR, the retailer must obtain a distributor permit from DOR.

D. Sales

¢ Certified Manufacturers and Brands — Only cigarettes and Roll-Your-Own (RYO) tobacco products in
Directory of Certified Tobacco Manufacturers and Brands on the Wisconsin Department of Justice's website
(www.doj.state.wi.us) may be sold to Wisconsin consumers. Products not listed cannot be sold or possessed
for sale after the date shown on the directory. Wholesalers and retailers that possess for sale, or sell,
products in violation are subject to confiscation of that product and/or fines, forfeitures and revocation of
their permits.

*  Minimum Markup —The unfair Sales Act, commonly referred to as the Minimum Markup Law" (sec. 100.30),
provides that tobacco products, including cigarettes, may not be sold at less than cost. Cost includes a
presumptive 3% markup by wholesalers and presumptive 6% markup by retailers. The Wisconsin
Department of Agriculture, Trade & Consumer Protection (DATCP) administers the Unfair Sales Act. For
questions on cigarette and tobacco products pricing or markup, contact DATCP Trade Practices staff at (608)
224-4925 or (608) 224-4989.

* Single Cigarettes — Federal law prohibits sales of cigarette packages containing fewer than 20 cigare..
including single cigarettes, known as "loosies." No retailer may sell individual cigarettes.

7

E. Underage Persons

* Sales to Underage Persons — According to federal law (21 USC 387f(d)(5)), no retailer may sell or give away

cigarettes, tobacco products, or nicotine products (including electronic cigarettes containing nicotine) to
someone under 21 years of age.

* Possession of Cigarettes/Tobacco Products/Nicotine Products by Minors — A person under 18 years of age
may possess cigarettes/tobacco products/nicotine products for the sole purpose of resale in the course of
employment during their working hours if employed by a licensed retailer. (sec. 254.92(2), Wis. Stats.)

VAPOR PRODUCTS

A. Definitions

® Vapor product — a noncombustible product that produces vapor or aerosol for inhalation from the
application of a heating element, regardless of whether the liquid or substance contains nicotine.

e Distributor —any person:

o engaged inthe business of selling vapor products in Wisconsin who brings, or causes to be brought, into
Wisconsin from outside Wisconsin any vapor products for sale

o who makes, manufactures or fabricates vapor products in Wisconsin for sale in Wisconsin

Negas

o located and selling vapor products in another state who ships or transports vapor products to Wisconsin
retailers for sale by those retailers

@

I A K LS TR T B L TEL S BN T L md e Ay e e s i s e e TN I T At LMD R ASSTI N Ty TR T

=

Back to Table of Gayptents




Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

§

B.

Note: A distributor includes a retailer that makes sales of untaxed vapor products in Wisconsin which are
brought into Wisconsin from another state.

Permit

Distributors of vapor products that do not currently hold a tobacco distributor permit must apply for a permit
by completing Form CTP-129, Cigarette-Tobacco/Vapor Products Permits Application. (sec. 139.79, Wis. Stats.)

Retailers that bring untaxed vapor products into Wisconsin for sale to consumers must obtain a tobacco
distributor permit.

Wisconsin retailers should review the Wisconsin Tobacco Products Permit Listing at revenue.wi.gov for
purchasing vapor products from businesses that hold a Wisconsin tobacco and vapor products distributor's
permit.

Taxes
An excise tax is imposed on vapor products received by distributors in Wisconsin.

The tax is imposed on the sale, offering or exposing for sale, possession with intent to sell or removal for
consumption or other disposition for any purpose of vapor products. The tax rate is 5 cents per milliliter of the
liquid or other substance based on the volume listed by the manufacturer and at a proportionate rate for any
other quantity or fractional part.

The vapor products tax is reported electronically using Form TT-100, Wisconsin Distributor's Tobacco and Vapor
Products Tax Return, and supporting schedules.

“ 41. VIDEO GAMBLING

The operation of video gambling machines is a violation of Wisconsin law.

A gambling machine is a contrivance which, for a consideration, affords the player an opportunity to obtain
something of value, the award of which is determined by chance, even though accompanied by some skill and
whether the prize is automatically paid by the machine. (sec. 945.01(3), Wis. Stats.)

A "gambling machine" does not include any of the following:

A device used in conducting a bingo occasion or raffle event under ch. 563, Wis. Stats., used in conducting a
lottery under ch. 565 or used in conducting a race under ch. 562.

Any amusement device if it rewards the player exclusively with one or more non-redeemable free replays for
achieving certain scores and does not change the ratio or record the number of the free plays so awarded.

An amusement device involving skill, if it rewards the player exclusively with merchandise contained within the
amusement device proper and limited to prizes, toys and novelties, each having a wholesale value which is not
more than seven times the cost charged to play the amusement device once or $5, whichever is less.

"Skill" means, within an opportunity provided for all players fairly to obtain prizes or rewards of merchandise, a
player's precision, dexterity or ability to use his or her knowledge which enables him or her to obtain more
frequent rewards or prizes than does another less precise, dexterous or knowledgeable player.

Berrl ¥ Terbhla Anf FAantanes



Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

A. Enforcement

e DOR - Only a DOR special agent certified as a law enforcement officer may investigate or enforce video
gambling violations on premises of persons holding "Class B" liquor and/or Class "B" beer licenses witl,
or fewer video gambling machines.

e Municipalities — Cities, towns, and villages have the authority to prohibit by ordinance all forms of gambling
and to seize anything devised solely for gambling or used for gambling. Local law enforcement investigates
and enforces these ordinance violations.

(sec. 175.38, Wis. Stats.)

Violations

¢ Having five or fewer video gambling machines on a Class B premises may result in the following:
o Seizure of the machines
o Seizure of money in the machines

o Forfeiture of $500 per machine per incident

¢ Having more than five video gambling machines on a Class B premises, or any number of video gambling
machines on any other licensed or unlicensed premises, is a felony.

The licensee may be arrested by a DOR special agent or a law enforcement officer of the jurisdiction where
the arrest is made.

(sec. 945.03(2m), Wis. Stats.)

Taxes : \
The sales price from admissions for access to illegal video gambling machines are subject to Wisconsin sales tax
and the net income is subject to Wisconsin income or franchise tax. The sales, lease, or rental of the machines

is subject to Wisconsin sales and use tax.

DOR conducts audits of both machine operators and Class B establishments for income or franchise and sales
and use tax compliance.

For more information about Wisconsin taxes on video gaming receipts, see Wisconsin Tax Bulletin 209, page 5.

12. RESOURCES

A.

Wholesale Permit Holders List

Alcohol beverage, cigarette, and tobacco and vapor products retailers must purchase alcohol beverages
cigarettes, and tobacco, and vapor products only from permitted Wisconsin wholesalers. Alcohol beverage
retailers may also purchase from permitted self-distributing brewers or brewpubs.

The following lists of wholesalers holding permits issued by DOR can be found at revenue.wi.gov:

o  Wisconsin Liquor Permit Listing

e Wisconsin Fermented Malt Beverage Permit Listing ‘

e Wisconsin Cigarette Permit Listing

e Wisconsin Tobacco/Vapor Products Permit Listing

it R

Back to Table of Qdtents



Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

Published Guidance

DOR has publications, fact sheets, newsletters, and answers to common questions that provide additional
information about alcohol beverages, cigarette, tobacco, and vapor products. These resources can be found at:

e Alcohol Beverage: https://www.revenue.wi.gov/Pages/AlcoholBeverage/home.aspx

e Cigarette, Tobacco, and Vapor Products: https://www.revenue.wi.gov/Pages/Businesses/Tobacco.aspx

Alcohol Beverage News

Sign up to receive email updates from DOR. Go to revenue.wi.gov, search for "subscribe" and sign up for Alcohol
Beverage News.

DOR Assistance

If you are unable to find an answer to your questions about the Wisconsin alcohol beverage, cigarette, or
tobacco and vapor products laws, visit the DOR's website, email, write, or call:

Visit our website . . . revenue.wi.gov

Email... DORAIcoholTobaccoEnforcement@wisconsin.gov

Write . . . Wisconsin DOR

P.O. Box 8933

Madison, WI 53708-8933
Telephone.. . (608) 264-4573

. PPN

- Ll Lo s _a_



ISYMTSTIV6 BP33e Jaydolsuyd | (43umQ [enpialpul) 33BN Jaydolsiay) II4D %@ Jeg uloyyong €780-tz| 914

Py ueAy M £20€ uiaH 4930y o JT1 ‘Asamog ayy 145 73 Jeg Asamog ¢780-z¢| 4919

1S Y3£T S 6059 Ayus yisuuay JT1 PN |Iseg 193ms liseg 19amg 0880-zz| DJ9d

PY sue’ w._w>04 S¥199 mcm__. sz_umc:. peltf} .umtq...._,m 9ue7 JIaA0] laing UOO*mmm pue iysng w.cm._ SI9A0T 94980-¢¢| D49
 ISYI9L S LO0TL uewiyq yedasq J11 ‘uewiyg ‘ aoeed elpu| L¥80-TZ| D99

T# SWOH 159104 M ZTZTT ydjopuey eifes 71 01pNs uied Jane|ds oIpn1S Juled Jane|ds| panssizeklou| gg
15 20T S 0168 Z}3N pineq D11 ‘UISUOISIM JO SBWSUID SNJJey BUWISUI) SWIIMOYS SNJIBIA| 8580-¢¢| 99

PY SUILIBIA 1S M ZSETT dled [seyain ou ‘pasenbs SqNS 13 2zl || SPROISSO.) 6780-7z| 99
IS YILTSTOL9 suing Jayjesy d1 ‘¥se3 S3103S LeN-leA TSST# Hewjep 8880-77| 91V

1S Y19/ SOETL Jayaiwin|g aue|3 "0 uaaisjem 0TO0ST# suda.idjem 9880-¢¢| 91V

IS YMTSLTS6 Jaq|IH ueug 0D udaigem | _¥88S0#susaJBlem|  §880-7Z| 91V

PY SIWOOT M 6066 9gaiid ejhey '0) usaJdeM | ~_6SPSO#susIBlem | £880-7¢| a1V

PY 9UET SI9AOT S 008L uas|Q |aiueq uonelodio) 1a8.e) . 88gr-13Joysd8ue)| | 7880-77| 41V
9AY UOsmey M 0075 113.1s)|eg 210poay ] OT1 ‘UIpuesy s yipuas] 1e pood s)ipuds| | 8/80-zz| 91V

IS YLZ S S0L9 sauor Aueyiy o] ‘Ise3 s,wes _ 9t8#qnDswes| //80-zz| €1V

1S Y19/ S T0ZL yaop Ajory J711 ‘spoo4 Me ean 09€9# dAES U, Y2id 8980-7¢| 41V

PY 9UET SI9A0T S 08LL esyeIe M YIe JT11 ‘sue eSay - TEVI# NS U, )i £980-2| 9V
9NV BWOH 153404 M €CTTT 1neyg ysuis dipaey 2711 “aeylng Jonbi7 1 sen umolpin 7980-7¢| 91V
1S Y19/ S 8STL Jewny| Japuip| J711 “uedjuessN A123019 uelpu| g sonbi Uuepy LS80-7Z| 91V

1a Aempaads m 050t UuBWYIIM M3Ipuy Ul ‘du] NIy £S8# du | yimy 1580-¢¢| 491V
BAY Uosmey M 0%0S alle|d a i Ul ‘duL YiImy LT duL qImy 0$80-zZ| 91V

1S Y1£LZ S S0€8 ysuis 393ling "2U] ‘poo4 g Jonbr maN 9401S Jonbiy uipjuely 1¥80-7Z| 91V

IS YT S VL0S9 [91ed Auung "ouj auoApuy donby7 g saniaLesd) unoosiq 0¥80-zZ| 491V

9AY Uosmey M 0ZZS IUOPJaA pJeydly 011 “Aoewiieyd SAD uisuodsip | 06€S# Aewieyd SAD 6€80-77| 91V

Py ueAy M 0Z1S Je|inyy elney) : 'D7119n4 uehy Py ueAy up s,Apuy 0780-zZ| 91V

3Ny uosmey M 0T9/L sueAj Yiaqezi|3 71 dnous [ie3ay puejhieg UaA3|3-£ 6180-¢¢| 91V
ssaJppy.ssauisng awenN Juady awen Auedwo) , vada "ON @5U2217 | sse|)

€c0¢/10/4-2202/0€/9
S9SU3I g pue v sse|)
uipuesd jo Aud



ISYLZSSLS6 uassaf PIIA J711 Auedwio) 3104 ulpjueld, (tanos Loduy min) s33INS 33plighels 6£80-¢¢| 419

AAY UOSMBY M 02ZL yaJany) piaeq D71 dnoup 100y 131Ud) J3AIY J00Y 9/80-¢¢| 9149
PY ade) yuoN S 805/ Aige4 ueyien 271 ‘@deld s, Aswoy ade|d s,Aswoy S9/80-¢¢| 4914
1@ >ed|jeq s S00L suyor sewoyy 211 ‘xajdwo) suods 300y ay | xa|dwo) suods ooy ay | v/(80-¢¢| d1d
1a>ped|eg S TT0L ZHWyas jaeyoiy J11 “4ed Mmous yooy, J4ed MouS Xdoy €/480-¢¢| 414
dAY uosmey M 19S J3711I9MYIS IAB1S Ju| ‘Qnd uosmey gnd uosmey 7/80-ce! 919
Py siwoo M\ 00201 UOSUDIMEH aual| pa31eJodiodu gnp) suods ejuojod qn|D Hods eluojod 1£80-¢¢| 414
ISYIB9 S T+69 Disiapny Asuysr du] ‘@duel|y a8eaH ysijod UISUODSIAN 40 121Ud) ysijod 0/80-z¢| 919
ISYyl9LstotTL J9[EA [24e(Q JT1 U9V uiod 9[|MO R qnd 49V 1ulod 6980-c¢| 919
ISYKLeSTrLoT Aey D pjesan OJ1M‘H849H 4aplog ayi uQ 9980-¢¢| 4d1d
ISYiLz S €68 Siduel4 ueng n'Lsg 149 78 qnd ysuJ| s,uedijjniy S980-¢¢| 414

IS YILL S Sob6 SipeiuaJn] sojoysody D11 panoiddy umm_msﬁcm BSOWIN ¥980-¢¢| 4d1d
ISYILZSTZY9 Aepeusoy ydjey J11 ‘493.ng uospny, Auedwo) 1331ng aa)nemi €980-¢z| 419

PY 739nd M 0€€8 ney siuuaq U] ‘Yaa] As|qoy Bzzid m_o_mMcm_um;u_E 6580-¢¢| 919

iQ yJedjjieg s s90/ suyor sewoyy D71 uBWUIRMISIUT 10D Ddg, $§2ug 3y /sney Soq/y oo axn 8560-¢Z| 919
ISUsLesveles EJ9AI3)) BIIUOIDA J71 undue) ami jueinelsay undue) a1 9580-¢¢| 419

1S SSIMS M TOVTT W[aH-Yoeeuy yiag 1o J71 ‘uipjue.y jo suewpue] ay | 9yl Jewpueq ¥980-¢¢| 4919
ISYILT S LSE9 uBwysny weljjim D71 ‘YLz uo Xvr S, I uod| 6780-¢¢| 419

PY ueAy M EEPTT s8uiuusf Auuar JT1 uipjueld jo adeno) ysuj 28e10) ysu| 8¥80-¢¢| 4919
ISygLsteeL Snouewo.Inoy alqqaqg "2U] ‘UISUOISI JO UO3YIURY 94 J911ng AsuoH 9v80-¢¢| 419
ISYI9L S €196 DIS|oY24Q yuedy D71 98e1aA9g 18 poo4 ulpjuely Asa1e3 13 qnd Aemeapiy Sv80-c¢| 4149
ISY19£ S 1069 wijwije) uosiaysf 21138444 S9UNS 3 uu| uoldwey EV80-¢c¢| 414
1SY9L S 9geL Sunat Aepy D11 ‘una1 m 3 N uapJeo ea] UsaIDH w80-zZ| 419

IS YI19/£ S 00T6 Jaga disor "JU] ‘S31191705 UBI1R0.) JO UONIRISPaS, Jued ueneot) 8¢80-¢¢| 414

OAY dWOH 159404 M TEZTT JSIBIA UIAD)Y 2711 8uiimog sauey Asauno) J91ua) 3uimog saue A;uno) L780-tz|! 4914
1S Y/ Z S 6EP9 J3Y1e|A eipuexa|y uonlesodio) Jueineisay Jaxulig Jeg g ||UD S, 11yD 9¢80-¢z| 919

OAY UOSMeY M LE€TE 1Z1p| X3y "oul ‘l1aIoTy o131019 iq ese) ¥¢80-¢¢| 419




192G R LO:_Q_._ g sse|D=g1g ‘@uIMm D sse|) g 43939 g sse|D=)gg ‘1999 g sse|D=gg ‘199g g Jonbi v sse|D=g1v ‘493g v sse|D=gv

35U2d17 IAMISIY S21LIIPUI ,,

PY SUILIBIANI IS M BTETT

1au8ap siuuaq

JT1 ‘uuj sule 1§

uuj suiue|A 1S s,Jaudam 6880-¢¢| 919
9AY [9X34d M T069 1qooer Jagiuuar qn| Ainuno) Aemespn qnp) Asauno) Aemejony ¥880-¢¢| 91d
1S Y12 S SOv8 leze7 eqiwug D71 ediwiig 3 uoy lueinelsay euedso| €880-¢¢| 4914

1S SSIMS M OEVTT yasney |eyshiy) J119nJ49 @ qnd D8y (14D @ gnd 193.1G SSIMS 1880-¢¢| 419




